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I. MEETING PROCEDURE
1. Call the Meeting to Order
2. Chairman's Remark
3. Management Presentation
4. Proposals
5. Discussion
6. Questions and Motions

7. Adjournment



Il. MEETING AGENDA
Time : June 5", 2025, Thursday 09:00 am
Venue : Grand Mayfull Hotel ( No.55, Lequn 2nd Rd., Zhongshan Dist., Taipei 10462, Taiwan.)
Procedure:
1. Call the Meeting to Order
2. Chairman's Remark
3. Management Presentations:
(1) 2024 Annual Business Report
(2) Audit Committee’s Audited Report on 2024 Financial Statements
(3) Report of 2024 distribution of compensation of directors and
employee bonus
(4) Report of the distribution of 2024 cash dividend
(5) Report on the establishment of “Code of Ethical Conduct”
(6) Report on the establishment of “Code of Ethical Corporate Management Best
Practice Principles”
(7) Report on the Establishment of “Procedures For Ethical Management and
Guidelines for Conduct”
4. Proposals:
(1) Adoption of 2024 Business Report and Financial Statements
(2) Adoption of the proposal for distribution of 2024 profits
5. Discussion:
(1) Amendment to the “Articles of Incorporation”.
(2) Amendment to the “Operational Procedures for Loaning of Company Funds”.
6. Questions and Motions

7. Adjournment



MANAGEMENT PRESENTATIONS:

1. Reports to Shareholders / Business Report

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the company's Board of Directors, Chairman, and the entire management
team, we would like to express our sincere gratitude to every one of our shareholders for
your long-term support of Dimerco Express Group during our promising development of
Dimerco Express Group and for sparing your time to participate in the Y2025 shareholders
meeting.

As per the KPMG audited Financial Statement, the consolidated financial report of Y2024
Consolidated sales revenue of Y2024 is NT$28.94 billion, representing an increase of
31.3% compared to the previous year. The after-tax net profit was NT$950 million, a
decrease of 6.7% from the previous year, and the earnings per share were NT$6.78, a
decline of 6.3% compared to the previous year.

The international transportation and logistics market in the Y2024 is full of challenges. The
Russia-Ukraine war, the Red Sea crisis, and geopolitical conflicts in the Middle East not
only affect regional stability but also lead to fluctuations and increases in freight rates.
These events have a significant impact on the route planning of airlines and shipping
companies, as well as the transportation capacity of goods, causing major difficulties.
Facing these global changes and the ever-changing market, the challenges are multiplied,
and the operational risks are also greatly increased.

However, the physical channels and virtual digital platforms built by Dimerco offer
integrated professional services that bridge the real and digital worlds, with a clear market
positioning. Through strategic differentiation and regionalization in key niche markets, the
long-established competitive advantage of over 150 physical channels has proven effective.
At the same time, Dimerco is committed to technological and digital transformation, with its
cloud-based digital supply chain management platform, the Dimerco Value Plus System®
(with cybersecurity certification), providing services across the international logistics value
chain. Additionally, the semi-automated solutions create efficiencies, increase productivity,
and enhance services, solving problems and creating value for customers. This has led to
significant customer recognition. Through digital marketing, Dimerco also promotes its
value-added services in customer supply chain management, strengthening its business
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expansion capabilities. Despite the challenges in the international transportation and
logistics market in the Y2024, including fluctuations and increases in freight rates, Dimerco
was still able to achieve substantial profitability.

In addition to strengthening profitability, Dimerco has long prioritized customer quality,
carefully selecting high-quality clients and effectively managing accounts receivable.
Through excellent financial management, the company is committed to maintaining a solid
financial structure. As of December 31, 2024, the current ratio is 268%, significantly
outperforming the industry average, demonstrating exceptional liquidity and debt repayment
capacity. Meanwhile, fixed assets accounted for only 8.7% of shareholders' equity or net
assets, reflecting the flexibility and adaptability of a light-asset logistics service provider.
Furthermore, total liabilities accounted for just 33.4% of total assets, indicating a very
healthy and stable financial structure.

Looking to the future, although the international transportation and logistics market remains
full of challenges due to factors such as U.S. tariff policies, the Russia-Ukraine war, the Red
Sea crisis, and geopolitical conflicts in the Middle East, the competitive advantage of
Dimerco’s physical channels and virtual digital platforms will continue to be effective. With
clear market positioning, Dimerco will drive its value-added services in customer supply
chain management through digital marketing, strengthening its business expansion
capabilities. Through digital transformation, semi-automation to create efficiencies,
increased productivity, and improved service quality, Dimerco is committed to continuing to
generate profit and contribute to society, while providing reasonable returns to shareholders
and dedicated employees. Thank you to all shareholders for your support.

Dimerco Express Corporation
Dimerco Express Group

June 5, 2025

Other Business information:

(1) Results of Business plan implementation

Unit: NTD’000
IFRS IFRS
ltem Growth %
2023 2024
Sales Revenue 22,042,684 | 28,947,367 31.3%
Net Profit After Tax 1,023,630 954,807 -6.7%
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(2) Status of Budget Accomplishment

The company was not obligated to prepare financial forecast for year 2024
in accordance to the “Standards on treatment guidelines for disclosure of
financial forecast information on public companies”.

(3) Analysis on financial balances and profitability

Unit: NTD’000
Year IFRS IFRS
Item 2023 2024
Financial |Sales Revenue 22,042,684 | 28,947,367
Balances
Net Operating Profit 1,081,336 1,011,261
Net Profit After Tax 1,023,630 954,807
Profitability [Return on Equity % 18% 15%
Ratio of nlet'proflt gfter o 799, 67%
tax on paid-in capital
Retroactive adjusted
earnings per share 7.24 6.78
(NTD)

(4) Status of Research and Development:

Dimerco’s digital marketing starts with understanding customer needs
and insights into the market to drive all marketing activities. It leverages
technology support through data, automation, and analysis, and accelerates
decision-making through the agility of a flattened organization structure.
Digital marketing works closely with our global sales and marketing team,
investing significant and optimal resources to attract, convert, and engage
customers through a seamless integration of online and offline services.

Customer expectations for service quality continue to evolve with the rapid
development of digital technology and diversified shipping options. The
importance of digital strategy will continue to increase during and after the
COVID-19 period.

Our company has increased its efforts in digital marketing and launched a
brand new global website in 2021. The website clearly communicates our
value proposition and reflects the company's strengths and management
capabilities across the Asia-Pacific region's supply chain.



In terms of digitalization, our company introduced the Dimerco Value Plus
System® (Web 2.0), a self-developed value-added messaging system, on
August 1, 2009. The system created a unified platform for sales, operations,
and financial management, and enabled effective management through a
real-time information system. The CYM (Consolidation Yield Management)
and Data Synchronization Method used in the Dimerco Value Plus System®
were respectively awarded patent certifications in the United States and
Taiwan in 2014, marking the official transition of our company from the
digitization stage to the digitalization stage of technology in 2009.

During the stage of digitalization, our company focused on three main
directions - cloudification, mobilization, and intelligence - to optimize our
internal and external processes through digital technology.

In the area of cloudification, our company incorporated cloud technology in
2017 by migrating the Dimerco Value Plus System® to a public cloud and
establishing a hybrid cloud architecture in conjunction with the construction of
a private cloud. This approach provided a balance between stability, flexibility,
and cost-effectiveness.

In 2018, we established a mobile technology team to develop mobile
applications and complemented this with RPA robot technology to extend our
service coverage. In the latter half of 2021, we completed the renovation of
our external digital portal, offering a one-stop information service that includes
online inquiries, booking, cargo tracking, and goods receipt and delivery. This
development enables us to offer comprehensive digital services to our
customers.

In terms of intellectualization, our company accumulates data in a private
cloud-based big data database and utilizes business intelligence technology
for analysis, providing real-time and flexible information support. Since 2018,
we have also begun to introduce artificial intelligence and machine learning,
developing real-time recommendations to give operational processes more
intelligence and improve accuracy and efficiency.

Regarding information security issues, given the increasing frequency of
security incidents, our company started investing in information security
management system in 2017 to ensure the security of our customers'
valuable data assets. We approached it from three aspects: People, Process,
and Technology, to enhance the overall security resilience. In early 2021, we
successfully passed the BSI audit and obtained the ISO 27001:2013 (IS
743553) certification. Later that same year, we also passed the NIST CSF
(Cybersecurity Framework) NIST 759307 verification.

Through our self-developed technology, we tightly integrate
data/information flows with our information security management system, and
further combine with our strategic partners to serve our customers, strengthen
service quality, create added value, and effectively help our customers
enhance the overall efficiency of supply chain management.

Feature highlights
® Supply Chain Orientation
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Integrates sales activity, operations, accounting, and financial
management across the Supply Chain in the transportation and
logistics industry for management efficiency and customer service
excellence.

® Web 3.0 based collaboration on Cloud Networking with
Applications
Eases deployment, connectivity, accessibility, ensures high
performance and service reliability, as well as reduces carbon footprint
by taking advantage of energy efficient technology.

® Resilience in information security:
Equipped with a complete information security management system
mechanism, ensuring the high availability of system services.

® Business Intelligence
Centralizes the data control mechanism to improve data quality, with
dynamic and flexible analysis reporting tool for customizable reports.

® Automation
Preserves natural resources by reducing paperwork through the
automation of integrated work flow and processes across the Supply
Chain.

® Customer Focused
Collaboration Service Platform as well as Data Integration
capabilities for seamless connectivity with our esteemed customers.

Dimerco Value Plus System®15861 is an integrated e-commerce
Service platform and real-time global information system provided by
Dimerco. Currently, the integrated system includes five information
platforms, eight functional modules, six extended management systems,
and one big data database. Through this system, not only can the
company's operational performance be improved, but it can also assist
customers in supply chain management to reduce their operating costs
and improve efficiency.

1 System
One Integrated Transportation & Logistics Service Management System

5 Platforms
Operation Platform, Service Platform, Cloud Network Platform, Cyber
Security Platform and Development Platform

8 Operation Modules

® eSAM - Sales Activities Management System

eCall Freight System- Trucking Management System
eAMS - Air Freight Management System

eOMS - Ocean Freight Management System

eWMS - Logistics Warehouse Management System
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® eRMS - Railway Freight Management System for Cross-Border Train
Freight (CBTF)

® eDAS - Domestic Air Freight Management System

® eFMS - Finance & Accounting Management System

6 Supplementary Functions

® cRate - Rate Query System

® CYM - Consolidation Yield Management System (Patent No. |
505230 (TW) & Patent No. US 8,694,440 B2)

DYM - De-Consolidation Yield Management System

3PS - Triangle Trade & 3rd Party Billing Management System

CBS - Customs Brokerage Management System

ACS - Automated Centralized Settlement

1 Big Data Bank
Enabled By Data Synchronization Method (Patent No. | 439873 (TW) &
Patent No. US 8,850,074 B2 )

2. Audit Committee’s Audit Report
Dimerco Express Corporation
Audit Committee’s Audited Report

Year 2024 company’s annual business report, financial statements, consolidated financial
statements and Proposal of Distribution of 2024 Profits made up by Board of Directors and
financial statements, consolidated financial statements and Proposal of Distribution of 2024
Profits have been audited by KPMG. The above-mentioned annual business report, financial
statements, consolidated financial statements and Proposal of Distribution of 2024 Profits have
been audited by the Audit Committee without inconsistency in accordance to Securities and
Exchange Act and Company Act.

DIMERCO EXPRESS CORPORATION
2025 ANNUAL SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

Audit Committee Chairman: Bill Chien
March 12, 2025



. Report of Compensation of Directors and Employees for 2024

According to Company Law and Articles of Incorporation, employee remuneration is NTD
56,887,382, remuneration to directors is NTD14,866,340. The above proposal will be
distributed by cash.

. Report of the distribution of 2024 cash dividend

(1) According to Articles of Incorporation 23-1, the Board of Directors is authorized to
approve the proposal for distribution of profits and report on the shareholder’s meeting if it
is distributed by cash dividends.

(2) The Board of Directors approved to distribute NTD 731,868,800, NTD 5.2 per share, from
accumulated unappropriated retained earnings of 2024 by cash on 12" Mar 2025.

. Report on the establishment of “ Code of Ethical Conduct”

Code of Ethical Conduct refer to ATTACHMENT Il

. Report on the establishment of “Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles”

Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles refer to ATTACHMENT IlI

. Report on the establishment of “Procedures for Ethical Management And Guidelines For
Conduct”

Procedures For Ethical Management And Guidelines For Conduct refer to ATTACHMENT IV

IV. Proposals:

First proposal: Proposed by Board of Directors

Topic : Adoption of the 2024 Business Report and Financial Statements

Explanation : (1) The financial report and consolidated financial report for the year of
2024, including balance sheets, statements of comprehensive
income, statements of changes in shareholders’ equity, statements
of cash flows, consolidated balance sheets, consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of
changes in shareholders’ equity and consolidated statements of
cash flows, were audited by independent auditors, Ms. Phyllis
Chang and Ms. Lydia Huang of KPMG, whereby an unqualified
audit report was issued, and together with business report were
submitted to supervisors for inspection, for your kind
acknowledgement.



(2) Please refer to page 3 to page 8 Annual Business Report of year
2024, ATTACHMENT | Independent Auditors’ Report, and 2024
Financial Statements

Resolution :
Second proposal: Proposed by Board of Directors
Topic : Adoption of the proposal for distribution for 2024 profits

Explanation : (1) Profit distribution of year 2024 to shareholders is proposed to be
distributed from year 2024 profit after setting aside provision for
legal reserve.

(2) According to the Profit distribution of year 2024, each common
shareholder would be entitled to receive a cash dividend of NTD
5.2 per share. Based on the current outstanding shares, Dimerco
would distribute a total of NTD731,868,800 cash dividends .

(3) The Board of directors is authorized to determine an ex-right date
after profit distribution of year 2024 is proposed and adopted. The
cash dividend will be distributed by shareholding ratio and would be
rounded up to NTD 1 dollars. The fractional amounts that are below
NTD 1 dollar after rounded will be accounted for under the
shareholders' equity.

(4) In the event that, the company outstanding shares or the profit
distributions are affected by a buyback of shares, issuance of new
shares for transferring treasury shares to employees, an equity
conversion in connection with domestic convertible corporate bonds
or other convertible securities, employee stock options, or any
transfer, transformation, or termination of stocks, the Board of
Directors have been authorized to adjust the cash to be distributed
to each share based on the number of actual shares outstanding on
the record date for distribution.

(5) Please refer to the Statement of Profit Distribution of Year 2024 as
follows:
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Dimerco Express Corporation

Statement of Profit Distribution of Year 2023

Unit: NTD

Iltem

Amount

Remark

Subtotal

Beginning Balance of Unappropriated Retained
earnings

2,209,589,122

Add (Deduct):

Share of Profit of Associates Accounted for
Using Equity Method

(68,496)

Changes in Actuarial gains and losses

4,652,927

Beginning Balance of Unappropriated Retained
earnings after Adjustments

2,214,173,553

Add:

2024 Net profit after tax

954,806,686

Distributable earnings

3,168,980,239

Add (Deduct):

10% Legal reserve

(95,939,112)

Special reserve

0

Available Retained Earnings for Distribution

3,073,041,127

Items for distribution:

Shareholder dividends - Stocks

0

Shareholder dividends - Cash

731,868,800

Ending Balance of unappropriated earnings:

2,341,172,327

Remark:

1. The Board of directors is authorized to determine the base date for distribution of cash and stock dividends.

2. The shareholders' meeting is requested to authorize the Chairman of the Board to proportionally adjust the

dividend per share based on the number of outstanding shares on the ex-right date if the total number of outstanding

shares of the Company is affected by the repurchase of the Company's shares, the transfer of treasury shares to

employees or other factors, resulting in a change in the cash dividend per share.
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V. Discussion:

Proposal from the Board of Directors:

First Proposal: Amendment to the “Articles of Incorporation”

Explanation :

(1) In accordance with the interpretation set forth in Letter No. 1130385442

issued by the Financial Supervisory Commission, and the supplementary
provisions of Article 14, Paragraph 6 of the Securities and Exchange Act,
companies whose shares are listed on the stock exchange or traded
over-the-counter are required to stipulate in their Articles of Incorporation
the allocation of a certain percentage of annual earnings for adjusting
salaries or distributing compensation to grassroots employees.
Accordingly, Article 23 of the Company's Articles of Incorporation has
been amended to comply with the aforementioned requirements.

(2) The comparison table of the amended provisions of the Articles of
Incorporation is as follows:

Amended Provisions

Current Provisions

Notes

Article 23

If the Company generates profit in a
given fiscal year (profit refers to pre-tax
earnings before the deduction of
employee compensation and director
remuneration), it shall allocate no less
than 5% of such profit for employee
compensation and no more than 5% for
director remuneration. However, if the
Company has accumulated losses
(including adjustments to undistributed
earnings), such losses shall be covered
in advance.

Of the amount allocated for employee
compensation in the preceding
paragraph, no less than 0.3% shall be
designated for salary adjustments or
compensation distributions to grassroots
employees.

Employee compensation mentioned
above may be distributed in the form of
stock or cash, and may include
employees of controlled or affiliated
companies who meet certain criteria.
Director remuneration shall be
distributed in cash only.

Article 23

If the Company generates profit in a
given fiscal year (profit refers to pre-tax
earnings before the deduction of
employee compensation and director
remuneration), it shall allocate no less
than 5% of such profit for employee
compensation and no more than 5% for
director remuneration. However, if the
Company has accumulated losses
(including adjustments to undistributed
earnings), such losses shall be covered
in advance.

Employee compensation may be
distributed in the form of stock or cash,
and the recipients may include
employees of controlled or affiliated
companies who meet certain criteria.
Director remuneration shall be
distributed in cash only.

Amended in response to Article
14, Paragraph 6 of the
Securities and Exchange Act."

Proposal from the Board of Directors:

Second Proposal: Amendment to the “Operational Procedures for Loaning of Company Funds”.

Explanation :

(1) In accordance with Letter No. 1140200203 dated January 23, 2025,

issued by the Taipei Exchange (TPEX), and in line with practical
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considerations and relevant regulations, the Company proposes to
amend its 'Procedures for Lending Funds to Others'.

(2) Where a subsidiary of the Company intends to lend funds to others, the
procedures that, under the 'Regulations Governing the Loaning of Funds
and Making of Endorsements/Guarantees by Public Companies,' require
a resolution by the subsidiary’s Board of Directors, may instead be
fulfilled by submitting the matter to the parent company’s Board of
Directors for resolution.

(3) The revised 'Procedures for Lending Funds to Others' is attached for
reference refer to ATTACHMENT V.

VI. Questions and Motions

VII. Adjournment
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ATTACHMENT I

Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Board of Directors of DIMERCO EXPRESS CORPORATION:
Opinion

We have andited the financial statements of DIMERCQO EXPRESS CORPORATION (the
“Company”), which compnse the balance sheet as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the parent
company only statements of comprehensive mcome, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, (including 2 Summary of material accounting policies).

In our opmnicn, the accompanymg financial statements present fairly, in all matenal respects, the

financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and its financial performance and
its cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 m accordance with the Regulations
Govermning the Preparation of Financial Reports by Secunties Issuers.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Repulabions Governing Financial Statement Audit and
Atftestation Engagements of Certified Public Accountants and Standards on Aunditing of the Eepublhic of China
Onr responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Aundit

of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of owr report. We are mndependent of the Group in accordance
with The Mom of Professional Ethues for Certified Public Accountant of the Fepublie of China, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities iIn accordance with these requrements. We believe that the audit

evidence we have obtamned 1= sufficient and approprate to provide a basis of our opimon.
Key aundit matters

Key audit matters refer to the most vital matters in our andit of the parent company only financial
statements of the DIMERCO EXPRESS CORPORATION for the year ended December 31, 2024,

based on our professicnal judgment. These matters were addressed m our audit of the parent company
only financial statements as a whole, and m forming our audit opimion. We do not express a separate
opimion on these matters. Key andit matters of the consolidated financial statements of the Company
are stated as follows:

1. PRevenue Recogmtion

Please refer to Note 4(13) “Revenue and cost recogmtion”™ for related accounting policy, and
Note 6(13) Eevenue disclosure for contractmal revemme.

Description of key audit matters:

DIMERCO EXPEESS CORPORATION's revemue 15 mainly generated from providing
contractual air freight forwarding services. It 1s recognized as current mcome when the goods are
sent to ship based on the delivery coniract with the pnce determmed As the time at which the
goods are sipped 15 variant based on each contract, the management of the Company determines
the time at which revenue 15 recognized under different operating conditions. We, therefore, list
the item as a key audit matter.
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Aundit procedures:

Our principal audit procedure and commumication through auwditing instructions sent to
associated CPAs are as follows:

Conduct tests to 1ts intemal confrol system for revenue recogmton to ensure the efficacy
of the system;

Sample monthly transaction records from top 10 customers and sales details for the entire
year to evaluate authenticity of the framnsaction, accuracy of transaction amounts and
reasonableness of recognition iming;

Obtain sales transaction records for certain period from the computer system to venty the
completeness of recogmition cycle;

Compare sampled bills of lading from arlme compamies and data compiled by the
Company to verity if the cormresponding fransactions have entered to the computer system;

Test sales records for transactions completed duning a certan penod before and after the
reporting date to verify the appropniateness for the iming of revenue recognition;

Cost estimate

Please refer to Note 4(13) “Revenue and cost recognition™ for related accounting pelicy on
cost estimation, and MNote §(14) for detailed cost disclosure.

Description of key audit matters:

DIMERCO EXPEESS CORPORATION's local and international air fransportation costs
contain identfying risks involving completeness of and accuracy of amounts. We, therefore, list
the item as a key audit matter.

Andit procedures:

Our principal audit procedure and commumication through auditing mstructions sent to
assoclated CPAs are as follows:

Conduct tests to its internal confrol system for cost recogmtion to ensure the efficacy of
the system;

Sample monthly fransaction records from top 10 customers and sales details for the enfire
yvear to verify whether relevant costs are listed with reasonableness and followed by
corresponding revenue recognition;

Send confirmation letters to wvenify accounts payable at the end of the penod. For
transactions with airline companies of significant balance, sample the actual payments

made during a certain peried after the reporting date the evaluate the reasonableness of
cost estimation for the penod;

Examine statement of related-party transactions to evaluate whether the payables to
overseas subsidianes for services have reasonably listed in the statement;

Test sampled cost records for sales transactions completed during a certain peniod before
and after the reporting date to venify the appropnateness for the timing of cost recognition.
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Responsibilities of the management and the governing bodies for the parent company only
financial statements

Management 15 responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements mn
accordance with Regulation Goverming the Preparation of Financial Feports by Securihies Issuers, and
for such internal control to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from matenal
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparmng the parent company only financial statements, the management 1s respensible for
assessing the abihity of the DIMER.CO EXPRESS CORPORATION in continuing as a going concem,
disclosing relevant matters, and adopting the going concern basis of accounting unless the management
mtends to hqudate the DIMER.CO EXPRESS CORPORATION or cease the operations without other
viable alternatives.

The corporate governance unit (ncluding the Audit Committee) of the Company 1s responsible
for supervising the procedures of financial reporting.

Auditor's responsibilities for the aundit of the parent company only financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance on whether the parent company only financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement arising from fraud or emror and to issue an
mdependent auditors’ report. Reasonable assurance 15 a high-level assurance but 15 not a gnarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with the auditing standards will always detect a matenal
misstatement when it exists. Misstatement may anse from frauds or errors. If the amounts of
misstatements, either separately or mm aggregate, could reasonably be expected to mfluence the
economic decisions of the users of the parent company only financial statements, they are considered
matenal.

1. Identified and assessed the nsks of matenal misstatement ansmg from fraud or error within the
parent company only financial statements; designed and executed countermeasures in response to
said risks, and obtained sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for our opinion.
Fraud may mvolve collusion, forgery. mtentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the ovemde of
internal control. Therefore, the nsk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than the one resulting from error.

2. Understood the internal control related to the audit in order to design appropnate audit procedures
under the circumstances, while not for the purpose of expressing an opimon on the effectiveness of
the DIMER.CO EXPRESS CORPOFATION's intemnal control.

3. Evaluated the appropriateness of accounting policies adopted and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and relevant disclosures made by the management.

4. Concluded on the appropriateness of the management's adoption of the going concem basis of
accounting based on the andit evidence obtamed and whether a matenal imcertainty exists for events
or conditions that may cast sigmficant doubt over the DIMERCO EXPRESS CORPORATION's
ability to continue as a going concem. If we are of the opimon that a material uncertainty exists, we
shall remind users of the parent company only financial statements to pay attenfion to relewm
disclosures in said statements within our audit report. If such disclosures are inadequate, we need to
modify our opimon. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtamed up to the date of our
audifor's report. However, future events or condifions may cause the DIMERCO EXPEESS
CORPOPRATION to cease to continue as a going concem.

L]

Evaluated the overall presentation, structure, and content of the parent company only financial
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statements (including relevant notes), and whether the parent company only financial statements
adequately present the relevant transactions and events.

6. Obtam sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information on enfities
accounted for using the equity method to express an opinion on the parent only financial statement.
We were responsible for guiding, supervising, and performing the audit and forming an audit
opinion about the DIMERCO EXPRESS CORPORATION.

The matters commumicated between us and the goverming bodies included the planned scope and
times of the audit and maternal audit findings (including any material defects in internal control
1dentified during the andit).

We also provided the govemmng bodies with a declaration that we have complied with the Nom
of Professional Ethics for Cerhified Public Accountant of the PFepublic of Chima regarding
mdependence and communicated with them all relations and other matters that may possibly be
regarded as detnmental to our mdependence (including relevant protective measures).

From the matters commumicated with the goveming bodies, we determined the key audit matters
for the aundit of the DIMERCO EXPRESS CORPORATION's parent company only financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2024. We have clearly indicated such matters in the
auditors’ report. Unless legal regulations prolubit the public disclosure of specific matters, or in
extremely rare cases, where we decided not to communicate over specific items n the auditors’ report
for it could be reasonably anticipated that the negative effects of such disclosure would be greater than
the public interest it brings forth.

EPMG Tarwan

Chang, Chun-Y1
CPA:
Huang, Tsa-Chuan

Competent Security Authority Jin-Guan-Zheng-Shen-Zi No. 1030036075
Approval Document No. - Jin-Guan-Zheng-Shen-£1 No. 1140131922
March 12, 2025
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DIMERCO EXPRESS CORPORATION
Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023
Unit: NTS thousand

2024 2023
Amount % Amount %
Operating revenue (Notes 6(13) and 7) $ 1,252,923 100 1,285,060 100
Operating costs (Note 6(14)) 1,051,398 84 1,061,677 83
Gross profit from operations 201,525 16 223,383 17
Operating expenses (Note 6(2), (4), (5), (7), (8), (11), (15) and
7)
Selling expenses 78,746 6 83,211 6
Administrative expenses 59,174 5 98,308 8
Expected credit loss (gain on reversal) for bad debt provision 619 - (3.506) -
Total operating expenses 138.539 11 178.013 14
Net operating income 62,986 5 45,370 3
Non-operating income and expense (Notes 6(3), (7), (16) and 7):
Interest income 3,120 - 6,752 1
Other income 204,122 16 198,565 15
Other gains and losses 22,542 2 3,259 -
Financial costs (3,197) - (5,454) -
Share of profit or loss of subsidiary & associates accounted for 718.892 57 893.854 70
using equity method
Total non-operating income and expenses 945.479 75 1,096,976 86
Profit from continuing operations before tax 1,008,465 80 1,142,346 89
Less: Income tax expenses (Note 6(9)) 53,658 4 118,716 9
Net income for the period 954.807 76 1,023,630 80
Other comprehensive income (Note 6(3), (8) and (10)):
Components of other comprehensive income that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss
Gains on remeasurements of defined benefit plans 4,653 - 224 -
Share of other comprehensive income (loss) of subsidiaries
and associates accounted for using the equity method (69) - 325 -

Less: Income tax related to components of other
comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss - - - -

Components of other comprehensive income that will not
be reclassified to profit or loss 4,584 - 549 -

Components of other comprehensive income that will be
reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial

statements 256,561 21 10,916 1
Share of other comprehensive income (loss) of subsidiaries
and associates accounted for using the equity method 323,168 26 21,402 2

Less: Income tax related to components of other
comprehensive income that will be reclassified to
profit or loss - - - -

Components of other comprehensive income that will be

reclassified to profit or loss 579.729 47 32,318 3
Other comprehensive income 584,313 47 32,867 3
Total comprehensive income $ 1,539.120_ 123 1,056,497 83

Earnings per share (unit: NTS$) (Note 6(12))
Basic earnings per share 6.78 7.24
Diluted earnings per share h 6.74 7.18

<]

Chairman: Chien, Wen-Li General Manager: Chiu, Chun-Jung Accounting Manager: Chen, Ching-Chi
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Balance at January 1, 2023

Appropriation and distibution of retained earnings:

Legal reserve appropriated
Cash dividends of ordmary share
Stock drvidends of ordinary share
Feversal of special reserve
Net income
(Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Changes in ownership mnterests in subsidiaries
Treasury shares transferred to employess
Gain on disgorzement
Balance at December 31, 2023

Appropriation and distnbution of retained exmings:

Legzl reserve appropriated

Cash dinndends of ordmary share
HNet income
Other comprehensive income
Tatal comprehensive meome
Acquisition of treasury share
Balance at December 31, 2024

Chairman: Chien, Wen-Li

For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

Statements of Changes in Equity

Unit: NTS thousand

General Manager: Chiu, Chun-Jung

20

Exchange
Eetained earnings differences on
the
translation of
financial
statements of
Special Unappropriated foreign Treasury
Common stock Capital surplus  Legal reserve rezerve earnings Total operations stocks Total equity
5 1,360,800 19,362 733,290 557231 3,353,782 4,644,353 177,589 (201,000) 6,001,104
- - 254,675 - (254,673) - - - -
- - - - (1,456.056) (1,456,056) - - (1,456,036)
68,040 - - - (65,040) (68,040) - - -
- - - (557.281) 557.281 - - - -
- - - - 1,023,630 1,023 630 - - 1,023,630
- - - - 549 349 32318 - 32 867
- - - - 1.024.179 1.024.179 32318 - 1.056.497
- (3,350) - - - - - - (3,350)
- 46,046 - - - - - 191,620 237,666
- 176 - - - - - - 176
1,428 340 62,234 987,965 - 3,156,471 4144 438 209,907 (9,380) 5,836,037
- - 102,418 - (102.418) - - - -
- - - - (844 464) (B44.464) - - (844 464)
- - - - 954,807 954,807 - - 954,807
- - - - 4.584 4.584 579.729 - 584.313
- - - - 959.391 959.391 579.729 - 1.539.120
. - - - - - - (172.472) (172.472)
b1 1.418.840 62,234 1090 383 - 1,168,980 4,250,363 739,636 (181.852) 6388221
(Please see accompany notes to financial statements)

Accounting Manager: Chen, Ching-Clhi



DIVMERCO EXPRESS CORPORATION
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 amd 3023

Unii: NT3 thowsand
2024 IRE]
iCash flows from (used in) operating actvities:
Net income before tax 1008, 465 1141346
Adjustments:
Adjustmenis to reconcle profit and loss:
Drepreciamon expense 10,408 L
Amortization expanse e 345
Expected credif losses (Fain on rewersal) for bad debt provision a1e (3,508)
Infersct expense 3197 3454
Interest income (3,120 ([8,732)
Dovnidend income 28) (208)
Share of profit of asseciates acoounied for using the equity methed {718,893) (803,854
Leazshold modification gaim )] 21)
Compenzation cost anising Tom reasury shares mansimed o emplovess - 43,186
Total adjustments to reconcle proft and koss {707,770} (B46.2200
Chanpes in operating assefs and labilites:
et change: in opemating assats:
Hotss receivable 5,550 02
Agcounts receivable (09,853) 145,003
Accounis receivable — related panties (6.610) 11,182
Crther recefvables - related parties ERECE 4317
Cither oarrent assets 3 477
et defined henefit aszst {3, 1568) -
Tatal chanpes in operating aszets, net (60,125} 185 0463
et changes in opemnng liakdkinss-
Maotes payable (24,106) 15111
Accounts payahbls 20,767 (8,513
Agcounts payahle - related paries 05456 (84,336
Crther payables 13,250 {235,125)
Cither pryables - related partiss - (B48)
Crther current liabditiss (209) (3.803)
et defined hensfit lability - (2,008
Tatal changes in operating liabilities, nst 102,358 {310401)
Total changes in operating assetz and labilites, nat 33,433 {115.348)
Total adfusmsnes (674.339) {961 377)
Cash mflow generaned from operations 334,126 180,768
Interest received 3120 752
Drividends received 2 206
Interest paid (3,078) 54534
Income tax paid {105,146 {133 BE1}
Net cash flows from operating activities IR 120 39,307
iCash flow from mvesting actvites:
Apguisition of investment accoumted for nsing the eguity methed [17.861) -
Agquisition of inangible aszetz 5317) (183)
Arquisition of property, plant and equipment (3.138) (LBST)
Dedgeaze m Guaranies deposits paid 7 618
Davidend income received flom imvestments nsing equty methods 28 042 38 522
Net cach from investing activities 5,553 37.191
Cash flows from financing sctivities:
Iuma:emi]mrt—tmnhmﬂmgﬁ - 1207 218
Drecreasze n short-ramm - (1.4657 218}
Increasze (decrsase) in goaranes deposits received 18 (2
Inrreaze in ather pavables - related partiss 73,792 -
Payments of lzase Labilites 4, 545) 5404
Increaze in other non-curment liabilities 425,235 1440873
Cash dividends paid (B32.471) (1.263,758)
Payments fo acquire weasury shares {172,473 -
Treasury shares tansfarred to emploves: - 184 420
Other fmancing aciivities - 3217
Net cash flows used in finandns activities {302,347 (B4.008)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 67.874) 62,555
iCash and cash equivalents at beginning of pericd 22 2RE 218733
iCash and cash equivalents at end of persod 214414 281288
{(Please see accompany notes to financial statements)
Chairman: Chien, Wen-Li General Manager: Chin, Chun-Jung Accounting Manager: Chen, Ching—{hi
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

To the Board of Directors of Dimerco Express Corporation:

Opinion

We have andited the consolidated financial statements of Dimerco Express Comporation and its subsidiaries
i the Group™ ), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended,
and notes to the consolidated finanecial statements. including a summary of material accounting policies.

In our opinien, the accompanying consclidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the Fegulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Feports by Secunties Issuers and with the International Financial
Feporting Standards ("TFR.Ss™), Intemational Accounting Standards ("TASs"™), Interpretations developed by the
International Finanecial Beporting Interpretations Committee ("IFRIC") or the former Standing Interpretations
Commuittee ("SIC") endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of
China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Begulations Goverming Financial Statement Aundit and
Attestation Engagements of Certified Public Accountants and Standards on Aunditing of the Republic of China.
Our responsibilifies under those standards are further described in the Aunditors’ Responsibilities for the Andit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with The Momm of Professional Ethies for Certified Public Accountant of the Bepubhic of China, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

Other Matter

Dumerco Express Corporation has prepared its parent-company-only financial statements as of and for the years
ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, on which we have issued an unqualified opinion.

¥FEG 8 Tawan ce-rerehip anc s nenber §r of e FEG gobel orgen Exion of ndecencent merbe frme sfMisied with PG nissw@ons LUinisd, 8 oees [ngilen comeany imfed oy puarniss
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Kev Audit Matters

Eey audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our epinion therson, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. Based on owr judgment, the key audit matters that should be
disclosed in this anditor's report are as follows:

1. Revenue recognition

Please refer to note 4{m) "revemue and cost recognition” for accounting policy related to revenue and cost
recognition, and note §(p) for the disclosure related to revenue of the consolidated financial statements.

Description of key audit matter:

The Group manly generates revenue from providing service of air freight and ocean freight forwarding.
Revenue 1s recogmzed when the goods are consigned for transportation based on each shipping term and the
transportation fee can be reasonably determined Wherein the timing of delivery is different for each
shipping term and thus the management of the Group needs to determune the accuracy of the timng for
revenue recogmifion. Therefore, reveme recogmition 15 considered as one of our key audit matters in our
andit.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:

The key audit procedures performed by us and procedurss noted m the audit mmstructions sent to the
component audit teams for execution were as follows:

Testing the effectiveness of the internal control over sales.
Selecting a pericd of sales data from the system, and determining the completeness of the revenue
recognition.

Obtaining the list of top ten sales customers and sales data of the year, then performing test-of-detail by
selecting samples from each month to evaluate the existence of the sales and the accuracy of the amount
recognized. as well as the appropnateness of sales recognition.

Obtaining the master bill of lading provided by the arline and the summanze documents prepared by the
Group, as well as selecting samples from the summanzed documents to determune whether the related
house bill of lading have been recognized approprately.

Performing sales cut-off test of a peniod before and after the financial position date by vouching relevant
documents of sales fransactions to determine whether the iming of revenue recognition 15 appropriate.

[

Cost accrual

Please refer to note 4(m) "revenue and cost recogmition” for accounting policy related to cost accrual and
note &(q) for the disclosure related to cost of the consolidated financial statements.

Description of key audit matter:

The cost of the Group consists of local and international transportation cost. There 15 a risk in identifymg the
completeness of the accrual cost and the accuracy of the amount accrued. Therefore, the cost accrual is
considered as one of our key audit matters in our audit.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit:

The key audit procedures performed by us and procedures noted m the aundit mstructions sent to the
component audit teams for execution were as follow:

Testing the effectiveness of the internal control over cost.

Performing test-of-detal by selecting the same samples m comnection with the audit of top ten sales
customers and the sales data of year from each month, and evaluate whether the related cost have been
matched with the recognition of revenue and accrued appropriately.

Sending confirmation letter for the ending balance of accounts payable. Selecting samples with
significant amount from the reconciled documents between the Group and the vendors and veuching the
subsequent payment to determune whether the costs accrued at the financial position date were
reasonable.

Performung purchase cut-off test of a penod before and after the financial position date by vouching
relevant documents of cost transactions to determine whether the timing of cost accrual is approprnate.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Finamcial
Statements

Management 15 responsible for the preparation and fair presentabion of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Regulations Goveming the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and IFR.Ss,
[ASs, IFRIC, SIC endorsed and 1ssued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Fepublic of
China, and for such internal contrel as management determines 15 necessary fo enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to frand or error.

In prepanng the consolidated financial statements, management 15 responsible for assessing the Group’s ablht_',
to contimue as a going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with govemnance (including the Aundit Committee) are responsible for overseeing the Group™ s
financial reporting process.

Aunditors” Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to cbtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated finamcial statements as a
whole are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to frand or error, and to 1ssue an auditor’ s report that
includes our opinion. Feasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted mn accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Fepublic of China will always detect a matenal
misstatement when 1t exists. Misstatements can anse from frand or emor and are considered matenal if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected fo influence the economuc decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Fepublic of China, we exercise
professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit We also:

1. Identify and assess the nisks of matenial misstatement of the consolidated financial statements whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those nisks, and obtamn audit evidence that
1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opimion. The nsk of not detecting a matenal
misstatement resulting from frand is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invelve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overnde of internal control.

bt

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropnateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

4. Cenclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concem basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained. whether a matenial uncertainty exists related to events or condifions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to confinue as a going concem. If we conclude that a materal
uncertainty exists, we are required fo draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are madeguate, to modify our opimion Chr
conclusions are based on the andit evidence obtained up to the date of our anditors”™ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concem.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, meluding
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the enfiies or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responstble for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
tinung of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies i intemal control that
we ldentify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to commumicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with govemance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consohidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We descnibe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated m our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public mnterest benefits of such communication.

The engagement parmmers on the audit resulting mn this mmdependent auditors’ report are Chang, Chun-I and
Huang, Tsal-Chuan

KEPMG

Taipel, Taiwan (Fepublic of China)
March 12, 2025
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1551
1600
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Aszets
Currest assets:

Cash axd cash equivalsats (note S{a])
Fizancial acuets af amcrtised cost — caxreat {motes 6{b) and 8)
Motes mostrable, net (zotes 6{d) and (p))

Accounts recaivable, zet (mchiding related parties) (notes &(d), (p) and T)

Crhar curnent assets. (note B)
Toeal carrent axsets
Non-current assets

Financial assats at fair vales through profit or bows — non-coent (note §{c])
Financial asset at fair vales through ofher comprebanstre income — non-careat

Inwestments accoumted for nxing the equity medod (zote S(a))
Propedty. plazt and equipmiat {acte 5())
Eight-of-mws assets (Dotes &) and (7))
Intangihle assets (note S{h))
Dufarmed moome tax assats {note S(17)
Rafundable deposis
{Other non-corent awets (potes S{d), (k), (p). £ and &)
Total non-current asset

Totsal aszets

Ses aCCcOmMpanying notes 1o consolidated financial statements.

{Enslish Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Irsned in Chinese)
DIVMERCO EXFRESS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Conzolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2024 and 2023
{expreszed in thousands of New Tarwan Dollar)

Diecember 31, 2024 December 312023

Amomnt M Amemnt . Liabilities and E quity
Curreat lisblities:
3 4580318 47 4780,6%6 M4 2100 Shost-tarm bomowings (zote &3))
21935 1 3™ - 2150 HMotzs pryable
2321 - 8307 - 2170 Accounts payables (mchding related partic:) (note T)

3J3EEe 34 IL4ELIPE 28 2216 Dividends payable (oot {m))
1716 3 180340 _ 1 ;I8 Crhar paryailes (motss &) and 9)
8230330 _ 83 TAE4IT4 84 2030 Income bxpavabls

2280 Current Jeass linhilitins (oot 6(7))

31T - - - 21399 Crihier curment Hakdlities
452 - H“e - Total current Labilities
246,514 3 246,953 3 Noa-Current Esbilities:
60,876 3 M4 T26 & 2570 Jefnmred Income ax Habdites (note (1))
357,001 4 331,163 4 2580 Mon-current kease habilities (oot S{j))
TO R 1 69,817 1 2840 Mat dafined bemafit Babdliies (note 6k
12475 1 123,354 1 2670 Orther nom-current Habdlities
82,130 1 BB, 445 1 Total nom-current Easbilicies
16403 - 1134 - Total lisbilities
1451487 13 14172153 16 Equiry attributable to ewners of the Company {notes &g (E), (m) azd (o))

311 Com=mon stock
3200 Capital serples
33 Fataingd sarmings:

3310 Lagal esarve
3350 Unapproprizted eixined sammings

Hxx Crther pquity:
410 Forsig curmency tramlaticn diffecunces for foredm operatioms
3500 Treasury skares
Tatal equity artributsble to owners of the Company
iz Nom-comtrelling imterests
_ _ Total equity
§_STNET 1M 5881627 100 I-3oox Toral liabilities and equiry
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December 31, 2024

Ik ber 31, 2013

Amomn:  _th _ Amoust
£ 1m0 2 150,000
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LI3BIE I LE80.530
M6 - 12533
1M % 165140
85252 1 124,767
174677 2 174817
15653 _ % 364952
1057326 _30 __ 2,766,579
FER 10540
145,743 125,528
1783 - 4,536
00 - 34,855
193,047 _ 2 173589
33T _33 2040 ME
LAIRESD 1% _ 1405540
§2234 1 61734
190383 11 857963
1066980 _33 __ 3136470
430363 44 5144435
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G200
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000
1100
010
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1000
050

300
E310
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{English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Tssned in Chinese)
DILMERCO EXPRESS COEPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the vear: ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

{expressed in thousands of New Tatwan Dollar , except for earnings per common share)

Operating revenne (notes 6(p) and T)
Operating costs (motes §(f), (), (), (k) and (g))
Gross profit from operations
Operating expenses (motes &d), (f), (2], (), G, (&), (). (r) and T
Selling expenses
Adrminisrative expenses
Expected credit Joss (gam on reversal) for bad debt provision
Total operating expenses
Net operating income
Non-operating income and expenses (notes 6i(e), (j) and (5)):
Interest mooms
(et income
Orther paims and losses
Fmance costs
Share of profit of associates accounted for using the equity method
Tofal nom-operating income and expenses
FProfit from continning operations before tax
Less: Income fax expenses (mote G{I))
Net income

Other comprehensive moome:

Components of ofher comprebensive income that will mot be reclassified to profit or loss

(Gams oo remeasurements of defined benafit plans (pote &)

Less: Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will oot be

reclassafied to profit or koss

Components of other comprebensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Components of ofher comprebensive income that will be reclassified to profit or loss (notes

i) and (m])

Exchange differences on ranslation of foreipn financial satements

Less: Income @x related to components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified

to profit or loss

Components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Other comprehensive moome

Total comprebensive income

FProfit {loss) attributable to:
Cromers of the Company
Nop-controlling interests

Taotal comprebensive income attribotable to:
Cromers of the Company
Nop-controlling interests

Earmings per share (NT dollars) (note §{o))
Basic earmings per share

See accompanying notes to consolidated Snancisl statements.
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(Ezglich Translacion of Consolidaied Financisl Sintement: Criginally Trzmed in Chinese)
DIMERCO EXPRESS CORFOBATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
For the years ended Diecember 31, 2024 and 2023
{expressed i thousands of New Taiwan Dollar)

Equity wiinbeisbl icawacr ol S Lampany

Se ACCOMpATYIg notes to consolidated fnamcial statements.
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{Ezzlish Tranzlacen of Consolidated Financial S¢acement: Origizally Iined in Chinese)

DIMERCO EXPRESS CORFORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 11, 2024 and 2023
{expressed in thowsands of New Taiwan Dollar)

Cash flows from (nsed ) operating aciivities:
Net moome before tax

Adjosiments:
Adjustments o reconcile profit and loss:
Depreciation expense
Expectad credit losses (zam on reversal) fior bad debt provision
Imierest expense
Interest incoms
Dividend income
Share of profi of associanss acoouned for using the squiny method
Liozs (gmin) on disposal of propenty, plant and squipment
Compensation cost ansing fom reasury shares tans fmed fo snplovees
Gain on lease modification
Toital adiustments to reooncils profit and loss
Changes in operating assets and Labdlides:
Mat chanzss in operatng assats:
Totes receivable

Accoumts receivable (mchading related parties) (nchadine overdue recetvables)

Crher curment assets
et dafined benefit azsats

ﬁ:c{l.mispnfﬂ]:ﬂeljm:hd]ngr&lledpurﬂﬁj
Crher payabies
Orher Tighilita
et defined benefit liabilides
Total changes in operating lishilites, net
Total chanses i operafing assets and labilities, nst
Total adusments
Caszh inflow zeremied fom operations
Interest recemved
Infprect pasd
Income tanes paid
et cash flows from operating actvities
Cash flows from (nsed m} investing acGvities:
Dierrease (increase) m firencial assets at amoriised cost
Acuisition of financial assets at fair valoe throush proft or loss
Acuisitien of property, plant and equipment
Procesds from disposal of propenty, plant and equipment
Dicereass in refundable deposits
Acquisitien of infanzible asssts
DCierrease (inoeaze) moother non-Cmment asses
Crividends received
Net cash from (wsed in) irvesting a0 tivities
Cazh flows from {nsed in) financing sotivities:
Increase in shart-term borrewinss
Dierrease in shor-term bomowinss
Paymemt of leaze Habilities
Deerrease in other non-omment Habdlites

Net cash flows wed in fimancing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash amd cash equivalents
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cach equivalents af besinning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
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ATTACHMENT II
Dimerco Express Corporation

Codes of Ethical Conduct
Article 1:

In recognition of the necessity to assist the companies in establishment of codes of ethical
conduct, these Guidelines are adopted for the purpose of encouraging directors and managerial
officers (including general managers or their equivalents, assistant general managers or their
equivalents, deputy assistant general managers or their equivalents, chief financial and chief
accounting officers, and other persons authorized to manage affairs and sign documents on behalf
of a company) to act in line with ethical standards, and to help interested parties better understand
the ethical standards of such companies.

Article 2:
Taking its individual circumstances and needs into consideration, the company shall adopt a code
of ethical conduct that addresses at least the following eight matters:

1. Prevention of conflicts of interest:

Conflicts of interest occur when personal interest intervenes or is likely to intervene in the
overall interest of the company, as for example when a director or managerial officer of the
company is unable to perform their duties in an objective and efficient manner, or when a
person in such a position takes advantage of their position in the company to obtain
improper benefits for either themselves or their spouse or relatives within the second
degree of kinship. The company shall pay special attention to loans of funds, provisions of
guarantees, and major asset transactions or the purchase (or sale) of goods involving the
affiliated enterprise at which a director or managerial officer works. The company shall
establish a policy aimed at preventing conflicts of interest, and shall offer appropriate means
for directors and managerial officers to voluntarily explain whether there is any potential
conflict between them and the company.

2. Minimizing incentives to pursue personal gain:

The company shall prevent its directors or managerial officers from engaging in any of the
following activities: (1) Seeking an opportunity to pursue personal gain by using company
property or information or taking advantage of their positions. (2) Obtaining personal gain by
using company property or information or taking advantage of their positions. (3) Competing
with the company. When the company has an opportunity for profit, it is the responsibility of
the directors and managerial officers to maximize the reasonable and proper benefits that
can by obtained by the company.

3. Confidentiality:
The directors and managerial officers of the company shall be bound by the obligation to
maintain the confidentiality of any information regarding the company itself or its suppliers
and customers, except when authorized or required by law to disclose such information.
Confidential information includes any undisclosed information that, if exploited by a
competitor or disclosed, could result in damage to the company or the suppliers and
customers.

4. Fair trade:
Directors and managerial officers shall treat all suppliers and customers, competitors, and
employees fairly, and may not obtain improper benefits through manipulation, nondisclosure,
or misuse of the information learned by virtue of their positions, or through
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misrepresentation of important matters, or through other unfair trading practices.

5. Safeguarding and proper use of company assets:
All directors and managerial officers have the responsibility to safeguard company assets
and to ensure that they can be effectively and lawfully used for official business purposes;
any theft, negligence in care, or waste of the assets will all directly impact the company's
profitability.

6. Legal compliance:
The company shall strengthen its compliance with the Securities and Exchange Act and
other applicable laws, regulations, and bylaws.

7. Encouraging reporting on illegal or unethical activities:

The company shall raise awareness of ethics internally and encourage employees to report
to a company managerial officer, chief internal auditor, or other appropriate individual upon
suspicion or discovery of any activity in violation of a law or regulation or the code of ethical
conduct. To encourage employees to report illegal conduct, the company shall establish a
concrete whistle-blowing system, allow anonymous reporting, and make employees aware
that the company will use its best efforts to ensure the safety of whistleblowers and protect
them from reprisals.

8. Disciplinary measures:
When a director or managerial officer violates the code of ethical conduct, the company
shall handle the matter in accordance with the disciplinary measures prescribed in the code,
and shall without delay disclose on the Market Observation Post System (MOPS) the date
of the violation by the violator, reasons for the violation, the provisions of the code violated,
and the disciplinary actions taken. It is advisable that the company establish a relevant
complaint system to provide the violator with remedies.

Article 3:

The code of ethical conduct adopted by a company must require that any exemption for directors
or managerial officers from compliance with the code be adopted by a resolution of the board of
directors, and that information on the date on which the board of directors adopted the resolution
for exemption, objections or reservations of independent directors, and the period of, reasons for,
and principles behind the application of the exemption be disclosed without delay on the MOPS, in
order that the shareholders may evaluate the appropriateness of the board resolution to forestall
any arbitrary or dubious exemption from the code, and to safeguard the interests of the company
by ensuring appropriate mechanisms for controlling any circumstance under which such an
exemption occurs.

Article 4:

The company shall disclose the code of ethical conduct it has adopted, and any amendments to it,
on its company website, in its annual reports and prospectuses and on the MOPS.

Article 5:

The company's code of ethical conduct shall take effect after having been submitted to and
approved by the board of directors, delivered to each and submitted to a shareholders meeting.
Subsequent amendments thereto shall be affected in the same manner.
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ATTACHMENT il
Dimerco Express Corporation

Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles
Article 1:
These Principles are adopted to foster a corporate culture of ethical management and sound
development, and offer a reference framework for establishing good commercial practices.
These Principles applicable to the subsidiaries, any foundation to which the company's direct or
indirect contribution of funds exceeds 50 percent of the total funds received, and other institutions
or juridical persons which are substantially controlled by such company ("business group").
Article 2:
When engaging in commercial activities, directors managers, employees, and mandataries of the
companies or persons having substantial control over such companies ("substantial controllers")
shall not directly or indirectly offer, promise to offer, request or accept any improper benefits, nor
commit unethical acts including breach of ethics, illegal acts, or breach of fiduciary duty ("unethical
conduct") for purposes of acquiring or maintaining benefits.
Parties referred to in the preceding paragraph include civil servants, political candidates, political
parties or members of political parties, state-run or private-owned businesses or institutions, and
their directors, supervisors, managers, employees or substantial controllers or other stakeholders.
Article 3:
"Benefits" in these Principles means any valuable things, including money, endowments,
commissions, positions, services, preferential treatment or rebates of any type or in any name.
Benefits received or given occasionally in accordance with accepted social customs and that do
not adversely affect specific rights and obligations shall be excluded.
Article 4.
The company shall comply with the Company Act, Securities and Exchange Act, Business Entity
Accounting Act, Political Donations Act, Anti-Corruption Statute, Government Procurement Act, Act
on Recusal of Public Servants Due to Conflicts of Interest, TWSE/GTSM listing rules, or other laws
or regulations regarding commercial activities, as the underlying basic premise to facilitate ethical
corporate management.
Article 5:
The company shall abide by the operational philosophies of honesty, transparency and
responsibility, base policies on the principle of good faith and obtain approval from the board of
directors, and establish good corporate governance and risk control and management mechanism
so as to create an operational environment for sustainable development.
Article 6:
The company shall in their own ethical management policy clearly and thoroughly prescribe the
specific ethical management practices and the programs to forestall unethical conduct ("prevention
programs"), including operational procedures, guidelines, and training.
When establishing the prevention programs, TWSE/GTSM listed companies shall comply with
relevant laws and regulations of the territory where the companies and their business group are
operating.
In the course of developing the prevention programs, TWSE/GTSM listed companies are advised
to negotiate with staff, labor unions members, important trading counterparties, or other
stakeholders.
Article 7:
The company shall establish a risk assessment mechanism against unethical conduct, analyze
and assess on a regular basis business activities within their business scope which are at a higher
risk of being involved in unethical conduct, and establish prevention programs accordingly and
review their adequacy and effectiveness on a regular basis.
The company refer to prevailing domestic and foreign standards or guidelines in establishing the
prevention programs, which shall at least include preventive measures against the following:
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1. Offering and acceptance of bribes.
lllegal political donations.
Improper charitable donations or sponsorship.

Offering or acceptance of unreasonable presents or hospitality, or other improper benefits.

a &~ w0 DN

Misappropriation of trade secrets and infringement of trademark rights, patent rights,
copyrights, and other intellectual property rights.

o

Engaging in unfair competitive practices.

7. Damage directly or indirectly caused to the rights or interests, health, or safety of
consumers or other stakeholders in the course of research and development, procurement,
manufacture, provision, or sale of products and services.

Article 8:

The company request directors and senior management to issue a statement of compliance with
the ethical management policy and require in the terms of employment that employees comply
with such policy. The company and the respective business group shall clearly specify in rules and
external documents and on the company website the ethical corporate management policies and
the commitment by the board of directors and senior management on rigorous and thorough
implementation of such policies, and shall carry out the policies in internal management and in
commercial activities.

The company compile documented information on the ethical management policy, statement,
commitment and implementation mentioned in the first and second paragraphs and retain said
information properly.

Article 9:

The company shall engage in commercial activities in a fair and transparent manner based on the
principle of ethical management. Prior to any commercial transactions, the company take into
consideration the legality of their agents, suppliers, clients, or other trading counterparties and
whether any of them are involved in unethical conduct, and shall avoid any dealings with persons
so involved.

When entering into contracts with their agents, suppliers, clients, or other trading counterparties,
the company include in such contracts terms requiring compliance with ethical corporate
management policy and that in the event the trading counterparties are involved in unethical
conduct, the company may at any time terminate or rescind the contracts.

Article 10:

When conducting business, the company and their directors, managers, employees, mandataries,
and substantial controllers, may not directly or indirectly offer, promise to offer, request, or accept
any improper benefits in whatever form to or from clients, agents, contractors, suppliers, public
servants, or other stakeholders.

Article 11:

When directly or indirectly offering a donation to political parties or organizations or individuals
participating in political activities, the company and their directors, supervisors, managers,
employees, mandataries, and substantial controllers, shall comply with the Political Donations Act
and their own relevant internal operational procedures, and shall not make such donations in
exchange for commercial gains or business advantages.

Article 12:

When making or offering donations and sponsorship, the company and their directors, supervisors,
managers, employees, mandataries, and substantial controllers shall comply with relevant laws
and regulations and internal operational procedures, and shall not surreptitiously engage in bribery.
Article 13:
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The company and their directors, supervisors, managers, employees, mandataries, and
substantial controllers shall not directly or indirectly offer or accept any unreasonable presents,
hospitality or other improper benefits to establish business relationship or influence commercial
transactions.

Article 14:

The company and their directors, supervisors, managers, employees, mandataries, and
substantial controllers shall observe applicable laws and regulations, the company's internal
operational procedures, and contractual provisions concerning intellectual property, and may not
use, disclose, dispose, or damage intellectual property or otherwise infringe intellectual property
rights without the prior consent of the intellectual property rights holder.

Article 15:

The company shall engage in business activities in accordance with applicable competition laws
and regulations, and may not fix prices, make rigged bids, establish output restrictions or quotas,
or share or divide markets by allocating customers, suppliers, territories, or lines of commerce.
Article 16:

In the course of proving services, the company and their directors, supervisors, managers,
employees, mandataries, and substantial controllers shall observe applicable laws and regulations
and international standards to ensure the transparency of information about, and safety of, the
services. We shall also adopt and publish a policy on the protection of the rights and interests of
consumers or other stakeholders, and carry out the policy in their operations, with a view to
preventing services from directly or indirectly damaging the rights and interests of consumers or
other stakeholders. Where there are sufficient facts to determine that the company's services are
likely to pose any hazard to the rights and interests of consumers or other stakeholders, the
company shall, in principle, suspend the services immediately.

Article 17:
The directors, supervisors, managers, employees, mandataries, and substantial controllers of the
company shall exercise the due care of good administrators to urge the company to prevent
unethical conduct, always review the results of the preventive measures and continually make
adjustments so as to ensure thorough implementation of its ethical corporate management policies.
To achieve sound ethical corporate management, the company shall establish a dedicated unit
that is under the board of directors and avail itself of adequate resources and staff itself with
competent personnel, responsible for establishing and supervising the implementation of the
ethical corporate management policies and prevention programs. The dedicated unit shall be in
charge of the following matters, and shall report to the board of directors on a regular basis (at
least once a year):

1. Assisting in incorporating ethics and moral values into the company's business strategy and

adopting appropriate prevention measures against corruption and malfeasance to ensure
ethical management in compliance with the requirements of laws and regulations.

2. Analyzing and assessing on a regular basis the risk of involvement in unethical conduct
within the business scope, adopting accordingly programs to prevent unethical conduct, and
setting out in each program the standard operating procedures and conduct guidelines with
respect to the company's operations and business.

3. Planning the internal organization, structure, and allocation of responsibilities and setting up
check-and-balance mechanisms for mutual supervision of the business activities within the
business scope which are possibly at a higher risk for unethical conduct.

4. Promoting and coordinating awareness and educational activities with respect to ethics
policy.

5. Developing a whistle-blowing system and ensuring its operating effectiveness.

6. Assisting the board of directors and management in auditing and assessing whether the
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prevention measures taken for the purpose of implementing ethical management are
effectively operating, and preparing reports on the regular assessment of compliance with
ethical management in operating procedures.

Article 18:
The company and their directors, supervisors, managers, employees, mandataries, and
substantial controllers shall comply with laws and regulations and the prevention programs when
conducting business.
Article 19:
The company shall adopt policies for preventing conflicts of interest to identify, monitor, and
manage risks possibly resulting from unethical conduct, and shall also offer appropriate means for
directors, supervisors, managers, and other stakeholders attending or present at board meetings
to voluntarily explain whether their interests would potentially conflict with those of the company.
When a proposal at a given board of directors meeting concerns the personal interest of, or the
interest of the juristic person represented by, any of the directors, managers, and other
stakeholders attending or present at board meetings of the company, the concerned person shall
state the important aspects of the relationship of interest at the given board meeting. If his or her
participation is likely to prejudice the interest of the company, the concerned person may not
participate in discussion of or voting on the proposal and shall recuse himself or herself from the
discussion or the voting, and may not exercise voting rights as proxy for another director. The
directors shall practice self-discipline and must not support one another in improper dealings.
The company's directors, managers, employees, mandataries, and substantial controllers shall not
take advantage of their positions or influence in the companies to obtain improper benefits for
themselves, their spouses, parents, children or any other person.
Article 20:
The company shall establish effective accounting systems and internal control systems for
business activities possibly at a higher risk of being involved in an unethical conduct, not have
under-the-table accounts or keep secret accounts, and conduct reviews regularly so as to ensure
that the design and enforcement of the systems are showing results.
The internal audit unit of a the company shall base on the results of assessment of the risk of
involvement in unethical conduct, devise relevant audit plans , including auditees, audit scope,
audit item, audit frequency, etc., and examine accordingly the compliance with the prevention
programs. The internal audit unit may engage a certified public accountant to carry out the audit,
and may engage professionals to assist if necessary.
The results of examination in the preceding paragraph shall be reported to senior management
and the ethical management dedicated unit and put down in writing in the form of an audit report to
be submitted to the board of directors.
Article 21:
The company shall establish operational procedures and guidelines in accordance with Article 6
hereof to guide directors, managers, employees, and substantial controllers on how to conduct
business. The procedures and guidelines should at least contain the following matters:

1. Standards for determining whether improper benefits have been offered or accepted.

2. Procedures for offering legitimate political donations.
3. Procedures and the standard rates for offering charitable donations or sponsorship.
4

. Rules for avoiding work-related conflicts of interests and how they should be reported and
handled.

5. Rules for keeping confidential trade secrets and sensitive business information obtained in
the ordinary course of business.

6. Regulations and procedures for dealing with suppliers, clients and business transaction
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counterparties suspected of unethical conduct.
7. Handling procedures for violations of these Principles.
8. Disciplinary measures on offenders.

Article 22:
The chairperson, general manager, or senior management of the company shall communicate the
importance of corporate ethics to its directors, employees, and mandataries on a regular basis.
The company all periodically organize training and awareness programs for directors, supervisors,
managers, employees, mandataries, and substantial controllers and invite the companies'
commercial transaction counterparties so they understand the companies' resolve to implement
ethical corporate management, the related policies, prevention programs and the consequences of
committing unethical conduct.
The company shall apply the policies of ethical corporate management when creating its employee
performance appraisal system and human resource policies to establish a clear and effective
reward and discipline system.
Article 23:
The company shall adopt a concrete whistle-blowing system and scrupulously operate the system.
The whistle-blowing system shall include at least the following:

1. Anindependent mailbox or hotline, either internally established and publicly announced or

provided by an independent external institution, to allow internal and external personnel of

the company to submit reports.

2. Dedicated personnel or unit appointed to handle the whistle-blowing system. Any tip
involving a director or senior management shall be reported to the independent directors or
supervisors. Categories of reported misconduct shall be delineated and standard operating
procedures for the investigation of each shall be adopted.

3. Follow-up measures to be adopted depending on the severity of the circumstances after
investigations of cases reported are completed. Where necessary, a case shall be reported
to the competent authority or referred to the judicial authority.

4. Documentation of case acceptance, investigation processes, investigation results, and
relevant documents.

5. Confidentiality of the identity of whistle-blowers and the content of reported cases, and an
undertaking regarding anonymous reporting.

6. Measures for protecting whistle-blowers from inappropriate disciplinary actions due to their
whistle-blowing.

7. Whistle-blowing incentive measures.

When material misconduct or likelihood of material impairment to the company comes to their
awareness upon investigation, the dedicated personnel or unit handling the whistle-blowing system
shall immediately prepare a report and notify the independent directors or supervisors in written
form.

Article 24

The company shall adopt and publish a well-defined disciplinary and appeal system for handling
violations of the ethical corporate management rules, and shall make immediate disclosure on the
company's internal website of the title and name of the violator, the date and details of the violation,
and the actions taken in response.

Article 25:
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The company shall collect quantitative data about the promotion of ethical management and
continuously analyze and assess the effectiveness of the promotion of ethical management policy.
They shall also disclose the measures taken for implementing ethical corporate management, the
status of implementation, the foregoing quantitative data, and the effectiveness of promotion on
their company websites, annual reports, and prospectuses, and shall disclose their ethical
corporate management best practice principles on the Market Observation Post System.

Article 26:

The company shall at all times monitor the development of relevant local and international
regulations concerning ethical corporate management and encourage their directors, supervisors,
managers, and employees to make suggestions, based on which the adopted ethical corporate
management policies and measures taken will be reviewed and improved with a view to achieving
better implementation of ethical management.

Article 27:

The ethical corporate management best practice principles shall be implemented after the board of
directors grants the approval, and shall be sent to the supervisors and reported at a shareholders'
meeting. The same procedure shall be followed when the principles have been amended.

When a listed company submits its ethical corporate management best practice principles to the
board of directors for discussion pursuant to the preceding paragraph, the board of directors shall
take into full consideration each independent director's opinions. Any objections or reservations of
any independent director shall be recorded in the minutes of the board of directors meeting. An
independent director that cannot attend the board meeting in person to express objections or
reservations shall provide a written opinion before the board meeting, unless there is some
legitimate reason to do otherwise, and the opinion shall be specified in the minutes of the board of
directors meeting.
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ATTACHMENT IV

Dimerco Express Corporation

Procedures for Ethical Management and Guidelines for Conduct

Article 1:
This Corporation engages in commercial activities following the principles of fairness, honesty,
faithfulness, and transparency, and in order to fully implement a policy of ethical management and
actively prevent unethical conduct, these Procedures for Ethical Management and Guidelines for
Conduct (hereinafter, "Procedures and Guidelines") are adopted pursuant to the provisions of the
Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx-Listed Companies and
the applicable laws and regulations of the places where this Corporation and its business groups
and organizations operate, with a view to providing all personnel of this Corporation with clear
directions for the performance of their duties.
The scope of application of these Procedures and Guidelines includes the subsidiaries of this
Corporation, any incorporated foundation in which this Corporation's accumulated contributions,
direct or indirect, exceed 50 percent of the total funds of the foundation, and other group
enterprises and organizations, such as institutions or juristic persons, substantially controlled by
this Corporation.
Article 2:
For the purposes of these Procedures and Guidelines, the term "personnel of this Corporation"
refers to any director, managerial officer, employee, mandatary or person having substantial
control, of this Corporation or its group enterprises and organizations.
Any provision, promise, request, or acceptance of improper benefits by any personnel of this
Corporation through a third party will be presumed to be an act by the personnel of this
Corporation.
Article 3:
For the purposes of these Procedures and Guidelines, "unethical conduct" means that any
personnel of this Corporation, in the course of their duties, directly or indirectly provides, promises,
requests, or accepts improper benefits or commits a breach of ethics, unlawful act, or breach of
fiduciary duty for purposes of acquiring or maintaining benefits.
The counterparties of the unethical conduct under the preceding paragraph include public officials,
political candidates, political parties or their staffs, and government-owned or private-owned
enterprises or institutions and their directors, managerial officers, employees, persons having
substantial control, or other interested parties.
Article 4:
For the purposes of these Procedures and Guidelines, the term "benefits" means any money,
gratuity, gift, commission, position, service, preferential treatment, rebate, facilitating payment,
entertainment, dining, or any other item of value in whatever form or name.
Article 5:
This Corporation shall designate the department of HR as the solely responsible unit (hereinafter,
"responsible unit") under the board of directors and provide it with sufficient resources and
competent personnel to be in charge of the amendment, implementation, interpretation, and
advisory services with respect to these Procedures and Guidelines, the recording and filing of
reports, and the monitoring of implementation. The responsible unit shall be in charge of the
following matters and also submit regular reports (at least once a year) to the board of directors:

1. Assisting in incorporating ethics and moral values into this Corporation's business strategy

and adopting appropriate prevention measures against corruption and malfeasance to
ensure ethical management in compliance with the requirements of laws and regulations.

2. Analyzing and assessing the risks of unethical conduct within the business scope on a
regular basis and accordingly adopting programs to prevent unethical conduct and setting
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out in each program the standard operating procedures and conduct guidelines with respect
to this Corporation's operations and business.

3. Planning the internal organization, structure, and allocation of responsibilities and setting up
check-and-balance mechanisms for mutual supervision of the business activities within the
business scope which are possibly at a higher risk for unethical conduct.

4. Promoting and coordinating awareness and educational activities with respect to ethics
policy.

5. Developing a whistle-blowing system and ensuring its operating effectiveness.

6. Assisting the board of directors and management in auditing and assessing whether the
prevention measures taken for the purpose of implementing ethical management are
effectively operating, and preparing reports on the regular assessment of compliance with
ethical management in operating procedures.

7. Preparing and retaining properly documented information such as ethical management
policy and compliance statements, situations concerning the performance of undertakings
and enforcement etc.

Article 6:
Except under one of the following circumstances, when providing, accepting, promising, or
requesting, directly or indirectly, any benefits as specified in Article 4, the conduct of the given
personnel of this Corporation shall comply with the provisions of the Ethical Corporate
Management Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEXx-Listed Companies and these Procedures
and Guidelines, and the relevant procedures shall have been carried out:

1. The conduct is undertaken to meet business needs and is in accordance with local courtesy,

convention, or custom during domestic (or foreign) visits, reception of guests, promotion of
business, and communication and coordination.

2. The conduct has its basis in ordinary social activities that are attended or others are invited
to hold in line with accepted social custom, commercial purposes, or developing
relationships.

3. Invitations to guests or attendance at commercial activities or factory visits in relation to
business needs, when the method of fee payment, number of participants, class of
accommodations, and the time period for the event or visit have been specified in advance.

4. Attendance at folk festivals that are open to and invite the attendance of the general public.

5. Rewards, emergency assistance, condolence payments, or honorariums from the
management.

6. Other conduct that complies with the local regulations.
7. Other conduct that complies with the rules of this Corporation.

Article 7:
Except under any of the circumstances set forth in the preceding article, when any personnel of
this Corporation are provided with or are promised, either directly or indirectly, any benefits as
specified in Article 4 by a third party, the matter shall be handled in accordance with the following
procedures:

1. If there is no relationship of interest between the party providing or offering the benefit and
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the official duties of this Corporation's personnel, the personnel shall report to their
immediate supervisor within 3 days from the acceptance of the benefit, and the responsible
unit shall be notified if necessary.

2. If arelationship of interest does exist between the party providing or offering the benefit and
the official duties of this Corporation's personnel, the personnel shall return or refuse the
benefit, and shall report to his or her immediate supervisor and notify the responsible unit.
When the benefit cannot be returned, then within 3 days from the acceptance of the benefit,
the personnel shall refer the matter to the responsible unit for handling.

"A relationship of interest between the party providing or offering the benefit and the official duties
of this Corporation's personnel," as referred to in the preceding paragraph, refers to one of the
following circumstances:

1. When the two parties have commercial dealings, a relationship of direction and supervision,

or subsidies (or rewards) for expenses.

2. When a contracting, trading, or other contractual relationship is being sought, is in progress,
or has been established.

3. Other circumstances in which a decision regarding this Corporation's business, or the
execution or non-execution of business, will result in a beneficial or adverse impact.

The responsible unit of this Corporation shall make a proposal, based on the nature and value of
the benefit under paragraph 1, that it be returned, accepted on payment, given to the public,
donated to charity, or handled in another appropriate manner. The proposal shall be implemented
after being reported and approved.
Article 8:
This Corporation shall neither provide nor promise any facilitating payment.
If any personnel of this Corporation provides or promises a facilitating payment under threat or
intimidation, they shall submit a report to their immediate supervisor stating the facts and shall
notify the responsible unit.
Upon receipt of the report under the preceding paragraph, the responsible unit shall take
immediate action and undertake a review of relevant matters in order to minimize the risk of
recurrence. In a case involving alleged illegality, the responsible unit shall also immediately report
to the relevant judicial agency.
Article 9:
Political contributions by this Corporation are prohibited.
Article 10:
Charitable donations or sponsorships by this Corporation shall be provided in accordance with the
responsibilities matrix for the Board of Directors and Executive Management and follow the
following rules:

1. It shall be ascertained that the donation or sponsorship is in compliance with the laws and

regulations of the country where this Corporation is doing business.
2. A written record of the decision making process shall be kept.

3. A charitable donation shall be given to a valid charitable institution and may not be a
disguised form of bribery.

4. The returns received as a result of any sponsorship shall be specific and reasonable, and
the subject of the sponsorship may not be a counterparty of this Corporation's commercial
dealings or a party with which any personnel of this Corporation has a relationship of
interest.
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5. After a charitable donation or sponsorship has been given, it shall be ascertained that the
destination to which the money flows is consistent with the purpose of the contribution.

Article 11:
When a director , officer or other stakeholder of this Corporation attending or present at a board
meeting, or the juristic person represented thereby, has a stake in a matter under discussion in the
meeting , that director, supervisor, officer or stakeholder shall state the important aspects of the
stake in the meeting and, where there is a likelihood that the interests of this Corporation would be
prejudiced, may not participate in the discussion or vote on that proposal, shall recuse himself or
herself from any discussion and voting, and may not exercise voting rights as proxy on behalf of
another director. The directors shall exercise discipline among themselves, and may not support
each other in an inappropriate manner.
Where the spouse, a blood relative within the second degree of kinship of a director, or any
company which has a controlling or subordinate relation with a director has interests in the matters
under discussion in the meeting of the preceding paragraph, such director shall be deemed to
have a personal interest in the matter.
If in the course of conducting company business, any personnel of this Corporation discovers that
a potential conflict of interest exists involving themselves or the juristic person that they represent,
or that they or their spouse, parents, children, or a person with whom they have a relationship of
interest is likely to obtain improper benefits, the personnel shall report the relevant matters to both
his or her immediate supervisor and the responsible unit, and the immediate supervisor shall
provide the personnel with proper instructions.
No personnel of this Corporation may use company resources on commercial activities other than
those of this Corporation, nor may any personnel's job performance be affected by his or her
involvement in the commercial activities other than those of this Corporation.
Article 12:
This Corporation shall set up a special unit charged with formulating and implementing procedures
for managing, preserving, and maintaining the confidentiality of this Corporation's trade secrets,
trademarks, patents, works and other intellectual properties and it shall also conduct periodical
reviews on the results of implementation to ensure the sustained effectiveness of the
confidentiality procedures.
All personnel of this Corporation shall faithfully follow the operational directions pertaining to
intellectual properties as mentioned in the preceding paragraph and may not disclose to any other
party any trade secrets, trademarks, patents, works, and other intellectual properties of this
Corporation of which they have learned, nor may they inquire about or collect any trade secrets,
trademarks, patents, and other intellectual properties of this Corporation unrelated to their
individual duties.
Article 13:
This Corporation shall follow the Fair Trade Act and applicable competition laws and regulations
when engaging in business activities, and may not fix prices, make rigged bids, establish output
restrictions or quotas, or share or divide markets by allocating customers, suppliers, territories, or
lines of
commerce.
Article 14:
This Corporation shall collect and understand the applicable laws and regulations and international
standards governing its services which it shall observe and gather and publish all guidelines to
cause personnel of this Corporation to ensure the transparency of information about services in
the course of services.
This Corporation shall adopt and publish on its website a policy on the protection of the rights and
interests of consumers or other stakeholders to prevent its services from directly or indirectly
damaging the rights and interests, health, and safety of consumers or other stakeholders.
Where there are media reports, or sufficient facts to determine, that this Corporation's products or
services are likely to pose any hazard to the safety and health of consumers or other stakeholders,
this Corporation shall immediately suspend the services, verify the facts and present a review and
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improvement plan.
The responsible unit of this Corporation shall report the event as in the preceding paragraph,
actions taken, and subsequent reviews and corrective measures taken to the board of directors.
Article 15:
All personnel of this Corporation shall adhere to the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Act,
and may not take advantage of undisclosed information of which they have learned to engage in
insider trading. Personnel are also prohibited from divulging undisclosed information to any other
party, in order to prevent other party from using such information to engage in insider trading.
Any organization or person outside of this Corporation that is involved in any merger, demerger,
acquisition and share transfer, major memorandum of understanding, strategic alliance, other
business partnership plan, or the signing of a major contract by this Corporation shall be required
to sign a non-disclosure agreement in which they undertake not to disclose to any other party any
trade secret or other material information of this Corporation acquired as a result, and that they
may not use such information without the prior consent of this Corporation.
Article 16:
All personnel of this Corporation shall adhere to the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Act,
and may not take advantage of undisclosed information of which they have learned to engage in
insider trading. Personnel are also prohibited from divulging undisclosed information to any other
party, in order to prevent other party from using such information to engage in insider trading.
Any organization or person outside of this Corporation that is involved in any merger, demerger,
acquisition and share transfer, major memorandum of understanding, strategic alliance, other
business partnership plan, or the signing of a major contract by this Corporation shall be required
to sign a non-disclosure agreement in which they undertake not to disclose to any other party any
trade secret or other material information of this Corporation acquired as a result, and that they
may not use such information without the prior consent of this Corporation.
Article 17:
Before developing a commercial relationship with another party, such as an agent, supplier,
customer, or other counterparty in commercial dealings, this Corporation shall evaluate the legality
and ethical management policy of the party and ascertain whether the party has a record of
involvement in unethical conduct, in order to ensure that the party conducts business in a fair and
transparent manner and will not request, offer, or take bribes.
When this Corporation carries out the evaluation under the preceding paragraph, it may adopt
appropriate audit procedures for a review of the counterparty with which it will have commercial
dealings with respect to the following matters, in order to gain a comprehensive knowledge of its
ethical management:
7. The enterprise's nationality, location of business operations, organizational structure, and
management policy, and place where it will make payment.
8. Whether the enterprise has adopted an ethical management policy, and the status of its
implementation.
9. Whether enterprise's business operations are located in a country with a high risk of
corruption.
10.Whether the business operated by the enterprise is in an industry with a high risk of bribery.
11.The long-term business condition and degree of goodwill of the enterprise.
12.Consultation with the enterprise's business partners on their opinion of the enterprise.
13.Whether the enterprise has a record of involvement in unethical conduct such as bribery or
illegal political contributions.
Article 18:
Any personnel of this Corporation, when engaging in commercial activities, shall make a
statement to the trading counterparty about this Corporation's ethical management policy and
related rules, and shall clearly refuse to provide, promise, request, or accept, directly or indirectly,
any improper benefit in whatever form or name.
Article 19:
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All personnel of this Corporation shall avoid business transactions with an agent, supplier,
customer, or other counterparty in commercial interactions that is involved in unethical conduct.
When the counterparty or partner in cooperation is found to have engaged in unethical conduct,
the personnel shall immediately cease dealing with the counterparty and blacklist it for any further
business interaction in order to effectively implement this Corporation's ethical management policy.
Article 20:

Before entering into a contract with another party, this Corporation shall gain a thorough
knowledge of the status of the other party's ethical management, and shall make observance of
the ethical management policy of this Corporation part of the terms and conditions of the contract,
stipulating at the least the following matters:

1. When a party to the contract becomes aware that any personnel has violated the terms and
conditions pertaining to prohibition of acceptance of commissions, rebates, or other
improper benefits, the party shall immediately notify the other party of the violator's identity,
the manner in which the provision, promise, request, or acceptance was made, and the
monetary amount or other improper benefit that was provided, promised, requested, or
accepted. The party shall also provide the other party with pertinent evidence and
cooperate fully with the investigation. If there has been resultant damage to either party, the
party may claim from the other party _ percent of the contract price as damages, and
may also deduct the full amount of the damages from the contract price payable.

2. Where a party is discovered to be engaged in unethical conduct in its commercial activities,
the other party may terminate or rescind the contract unconditionally at any time.

3. Specific and reasonable payment terms, including the place and method of payment and
the requirement for compliance with related tax laws and regulations.

Article 21:
As an incentive to insiders and outsiders for informing of unethical or unseemly conduct. Insiders
having made a false report or malicious accusation shall be subject to disciplinary action and be
removed from office if the circumstance concerned is material.
This Corporation shall internally establish and publicly announce on its website and the intranet, or
provide through an independent external institution, an independent mailbox or hotline, for insiders
and outsiders of this Corporation to submit reports. A whistleblower shall at least furnish the
following information:

1. the whistleblower’'s name and |.D. number (whistleblowing reports may be submitted

anonymously), and an address, telephone number and e-mail address where it can be
reached.

2. the informed party's name or other information sufficient to distinguish its identifying
features.

3. specific facts available for investigation. Personnel of this Corporation handling whistle-
blowing matters shall represent in writing they will keep the whistleblowers’ identity and
contents of information confidential. This Corporation also undertakes to protect the
whistleblowers from improper treatment due to their whistleblowing.

Personnel of this Corporation handling whistle-blowing matters shall represent in writing they will
keep the whistleblowers’ identity and contents of information confidential. This Corporation also
undertakes to protect the whistleblowers from improper treatment due to their whistleblowing.
Upon discovery or receipt of a report indicating that any personnel of the Corporation has engaged
in dishonest conduct, the Corporation shall promptly investigate and ascertain the relevant facts. If
the violation of applicable laws, regulations, or the Corporation’s integrity policies and rules is
confirmed, the individual shall be immediately required to cease such conduct, and appropriate

44



disciplinary actions shall be taken. Where necessary, the Corporation may pursue legal action to
seek compensation for damages in order to protect its reputation and interests. For confirmed
cases of dishonest behavior, the responsible departments shall be tasked with reviewing the
incident and proposing corrective measures to prevent recurrence. Procedures for handling
violations of integrity are stipulated separately.

Article 22:

If any personnel of this Corporation discovers that another party has engaged in unethical conduct
towards this Corporation, and such unethical conduct involves alleged illegality, this Corporation
shall report the relevant facts to the judicial and prosecutorial authorities; where a public service
agency or public official is involved, this Corporation shall additionally notify the governmental anti-
corruption agency.

Article 23:

The responsible unit of this Corporation shall organize awareness sessions each year and arrange
for the chairperson, general manager, or senior management to communicate the importance of
ethics to its directors, employees, and mandataries.

This Corporation shall link ethical management to employee performance evaluations and human
resources policy, and establish clear and effective systems for rewards, penalties, and complaints.
If any personnel of this Corporation seriously violates ethical conduct, this Corporation shall
dismiss the personnel from his or her position or terminate his or her employment in accordance
with applicable laws and regulations or the personnel policy and procedures of this Corporation.
This Corporation shall disclose on its intranet information the name and title of the violator, the
date and details of the violation, and the actions taken in response.

Article 24

These Procedures and Guidelines, and any amendments hereto, shall be implemented after
adoption by resolution of the board of directors, and shall be reported to the shareholders meeting.
When these Procedures and Guidelines are submitted to the board of directors for discussion,
each independent director's opinions shall be taken into full consideration, and their objections and
reservations expressed shall be recorded in the minutes of the board of directors meeting. An
independent director that is unable to attend a board meeting in person to express objection or
reservation shall provide a written opinion before the board meeting unless there is a legitimate
reason to do otherwise, and the opinion shall be recorded in the minutes of the board of directors
meeting.
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ATTACHMENT V

Dimerco Express Corporation

Procedures for Lending Funds to Others

Article 1: Legal Basis

This operational procedure is established in accordance with Article 36-1 of the Securities and
Exchange Act (hereinafter referred to as "the Act") and the "Regulations Governing Loaning of
Funds and Making of Endorsements/Guarantees by Public Companies" (hereinafter referred to as
"the Regulations") issued by the competent authority.

Article 2: Scope of Application

1.

2.

The company's lending of funds to others shall be handled in accordance with this
procedure. Any matters not covered shall be handled in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations.

A subsidiary of the company that intends to lend funds to others shall establish its own
operational procedures for fund lending based on the Regulations and the company’s
procedures. However, if there is a conflict between the Regulations or the company’s
procedures and the local laws where the subsidiary is located, the local laws shall prevail.

Article 3: Borrowing Entities

1.

2.

The company may not lend funds to shareholders or any other persons except in the
following cases:

(1) Companies or firms having business transactions with the company or its
subsidiaries.

(2) Companies or firms that require short-term financing, provided that the financing
amount does not exceed 40% of the net worth of the lending company.

The term "short-term" as used in the preceding paragraph means a period of one year,
except where the company's business cycle exceeds one year, in which case the business
cycle shall apply.

The financing amount mentioned above refers to the cumulative balance of short-term
financing provided by the company.

The restriction in paragraph 1, subparagraph 2 shall not apply to inter-company loans of
funds between overseas companies in which the company holds, directly or indirectly,
100% of the voting shares, nor to loans of fund to the public company by any overseas
company in which the company holds, directly or indirectly, 100% of the voting shares.
However, the Company shall still prescribe limits on the aggregate amount of such loans
and on the amount of such loans permitted to a single borrower, and shall specify limits on
the durations of such loans.

Article 4: Definitions

1.

The terms "subsidiary" and "parent company" in this procedure shall be determined in
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers.

The term "net worth" refers to the equity attributable to owners of the parent company as
presented in the most recent financial statements audited or reviewed by a CPA. For a
subsidiary, net worth refers to the most recent net worth audited or reviewed by a CPA in its
standalone financial statements or in the consolidated financial statements (whichever is
more recent).
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3. The term "announce and report" as used in these Regulations means the process of
entering data to the information reporting website designated by the Financial Supervisory
Commission.

4. "Date of occurrence" refers to the date of contract signing, date of payment, dates of board
of directors’ resolutions, or other date that can confirm the counterparty and monetary
amount of the loan of funds or endorsement, whichever date is earlier.

Article 5: Establishment of Operational Procedures

1. These procedures shall be approved by one-half or more of all audit committee members
and passed by the board of directors before being submitted to the shareholders' meeting
for approval. Any amendments shall follow the same procedure. If any director expresses
dissent and records it in the minutes or issues a written statement, the company shall
submit the dissenting opinion to the shareholders' meeting for discussion.

2. If the approval of one-half or more of all audit committee members as required in the
preceding paragraph is not obtained, the Operational Procedures may be implemented if
approved by two-thirds or more of all directors, and the resolution of the audit committee
shall be recorded in the minutes of the board of directors meeting.

3. The term "all audit committee members" and "all directors" shall be counted as the actual
number of persons currently holding those positions.

4. A subsidiary that applies these procedures under Article 2 must have its fund lending
procedures approved by its board of directors and shareholders' meeting. These approvals
may be replaced by approvals from the parent company's board of directors or
shareholders' meeting.

Article 6: The Aggregate Amount of Loans and The Individual Borrowing Limit
1. The aggregate amount

(1) For companies or firms with business transactions with the company, the aggregate
amount of loans shall not exceed 40% of the company's net worth.

(2) For companies or firms requiring short-term financing, the t the aggregate amount of
loans shall not exceed 40% of the company's net worth.

2. Individual borrowing limit

(1) For companies or firms with business transactions with the company, the loan
amount for an individual borrower shall not exceed the business transaction amount
between the two parties, defined as the higher of the actual purchase or sales
amount in the most recent fiscal year, and shall not exceed 10% of the company's
net worth.

(2) For companies or firms requiring short-term financing, the loan amount for an
individual borrower shall not exceed 10% of the company's net worth.

3. Fund lending among overseas subsidiaries in which the company directly or indirectly holds
100% of the voting shares, or fund lending between such subsidiaries and the company, is
not subject to the above limits but must comply with the following:

(1) The aggregate amount of loans and the individual borrowing limit shall not exceed
100% of the lending company's net worth.

(2) The loan term shall be no longer than two years, and extensions may be approved
by the board of directors, with a maximum of three extensions and each extension
shall not exceed two years.

Article 7: Fund Lending Procedures

1. Credit Investigation
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(1) Borrowers must submit necessary company information and financial documents
along with a written loan application.

(2) The finance department shall review the borrower's business, financial status, credit,
repayment ability, and loan purpose, preparing a report.

(3) The finance department’s assessment should include:

Whether the loan amount is within the limit.

Necessity and reasonableness of the loan.

Credit investigation and risk assessment of the borrower.

o0 w >

Potential impact on the company’s operations, finances, and shareholders'
equity.

m

Whether collateral is required and its assessed value.
2. Security

When the Company handles lending of funds, it shall obtain a promissory note of the same
amount as collateral and, when necessary, establish a mortgage or pledge on movable or
immovable property. Regarding to the aforementioned collateral, if the debtor provides an
individual or a company with sufficient financial capability and creditworthiness as a
guarantor in place of collateral, the board of directors may refer to the credit investigation
report from the finance department for approval. If a company serves as the guarantor, it
must have provisions in its Articles of Incorporation permitting it to act as a guarantor.

3. Approval Authority

(1) All loans shall proceed only after the finance department conducts a credit
investigation and must be approved by the board of directors. The decision may not
be delegated to any other person.

(2) Subsidiaries applying these procedures must obtain approval from their board of
directors, which may be replaced by approval from the parent company’s board.

(3) Loans between the company and its subsidiaries, or between subsidiaries require
approval of the board, and the chairperson may be authorized, for a specific
borrowing counterparty, within a certain monetary limit resolved by the board of
directors, and within a period not to exceed one year, to give loans in installments or
to make a revolving credit line available for the counterparty to draw down.

(4) When the company loans to others, it shall take into full consideration each
independent director's opinions; independent directors' opinions specifically
expressing assent or dissent and their reasons for dissent shall be included in the
minutes of the board of directors' meeting.

Article 8: Loan Term and Interest Calculation
1. Loan Terms
The term for each loan shall not exceed one year.
2. Interest Calculation

(1) Loan interest rates shall not be lower than the company’s highest short-term
borrowing rate from financial institutions.

(2) Interest is to be paid monthly unless otherwise approved by the board.

(3) No interest is required for loans between overseas subsidiaries in which the
company directly or indirectly holds 100% of the voting shares.

Article 9: Monitoring and Handling of Delinquent Loans
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. The financial status of borrowers and guarantors should be monitored regularly. Any

significant changes should be reported to the chairperson immediately for further action.

2. Loans must be repaid with interest before collateral is released.

3. Except as specified in paragraph 4 of Article 3, loans must be repaid upon maturity and

cannot be extended.

If a borrower fails to repay on time, the company may demand immediate repayment or
proceed with legal action to recover the debt.

Article 10: Internal Controls

1.

2.

Memorandum Book and Monthly Report:

(1) The company shall prepare a memorandum book for its fund-loaning activities and
truthfully record the information about borrower, amount, date of approval by the
board of directors or chairperson, lending date, and matters to be carefully
evaluated.

(2) The finance department shall prepare a "Details of Lonas to Others Report" on a
monthly basis, listing the borrower, the financing amount, the interest rate, the
period, and the balance at the end of the month. This report should be submitted to
the Chief Financial Officer or the General Manager for review and control purposes.

Internal auditors shall audit the operational procedures for lending funds to others and the
implementation thereof no less frequently than quarterly and prepare written records
accordingly. They shall promptly notify the members of audit committee in writing of any
material violation found.

The company shall follow the prescribed procedures when engaging in lending activities. If
any significant violations are found, relevant personnel should be disciplined based on the
severity of the violation. If the representatives of the company violate the provisions of
Article 3, Paragraph 1, they shall be jointly liable for the repayment with the borrower. If the
company suffers damages, they shall also be liable for compensating the damages.

If, due to changes in circumstances, the borrowers no longer meet the prescribed
procedures or if the balance exceeds the limit, the company should develop a corrective
action plan. This plan should be submitted to the members of the audit committee, and
improvements should be completed according to the timeline in the plan.

Article 11: Announce and Report

1.

2.

The company shall announce and report the previous month's loan balances of its head
office and subsidiaries by the 10th day of each month.

When the loans of funds reach one of the following thresholds, the company shall announce
and report such event within two days commencing immediately from the date of
occurrence:

(1) The aggregate amount of loans to others by the company and its subsidiaries reaches
20% or more of the company's net worth as stated in its latest financial statements.

(2) The balance of loans by the company and its subsidiaries to a single enterprise
reaches 10% or more of the company's net worth as stated in its latest financial
statements.

(3) The amount of new loans of funds by the company or its subsidiaries reaches NT$10
million or more, and reaches 2% or more of the company's net worth as stated in its
latest financial statements.

The company shall announce and report on behalf of any subsidiary thereof that is not a
public company of the Republic of China any matters that such subsidiary is required to
announce and report pursuant to subparagraph 3 of the preceding paragraph. The
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subsidiary shall report to the company by the 10th days of each month the amounts,
counterparties, and periods of capital lending to others. If the standards set forth in the
preceding items are met, the subsidiary must immediately notify the company so that the
company can arrange for the necessary public disclosure.

4. The company shall evaluate the status of its loans of funds and reserve sufficient allowance
for bad debts, and shall adequately disclose relevant information in its financial reports and
provide certified public accountants with relevant information for implementation of
necessary auditing procedures.

Article 12: This operating procedure was established with the full consent of the shareholders'
meeting in 2001.

The first amendment was made on June 14, 2002.
The second amendment was made on June 13, 2003.
The third amendment was made on June 26, 2009.
The fourth amendment was made on June 8, 2010.
The fifth amendment was made on June 10, 2013.
The sixth amendment was made on June 10, 2019.
The seventh amendment was made on July 8, 2021.
The eighth amendment was made on June 5, 2025.
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APPENDIX |

DIMERCO EXPRESS CORPORATION

Articles of Incorporation

Chapter 1 General Provisions

Article 1: This company is incorporated in accordance with the Company Law and is named
"Dimerco Express Corporation" in English and "t 3E4T B4 B4 A PR A "
in Chinese.

Article 2: The company engages in the following business activities:

G601011 air freight forwarding.

G402011 sea freight forwarding and transportation.

G701011 customs clearance.

G801010 warehousing.

1206010 cargo handling and packaging.

F401010 international trade.

Z799999 in addition to permitted businesses, may engage in businesses not
prohibited or restricted by law.

Article 2.1: The company may issue guarantees to external parties as required by
business needs.

Article 3: The company's headquarters is located in Taipei City. Branch offices may be
established domestically and internationally through resolution of
the board of directors if necessary.

Article 4: The company's announcement method shall be carried out in accordance with
Article 28 of the Company Act.

Article 5: The total investment amount in other companies made by this company through
transfer of funds shall not exceed 40% of the company's paid-in capital.

Chapter 2 Shares

Article 6: The total capital stock of the Company is NTD 1,680,000,000, divided into
160,800,000 shares with a par value of NTD 10 per share, which shall be issued in
installments by the Board of Directors. The company shall reserve NTD 50,000,000
of capital with a total of 5,000,000 shares and a par value of NTD 10 per share for
the conversion of employee stock options, which shall be issued in installments by
the Board of Directors.

Article 6-1: The transfer of treasury stock to employees at a price lower than the actual
repurchase price, or the issuance of employee stock options and restricted stock at a
price lower than the market price (book value per share), shall be resolved in the
Shareholders’ Meeting attended by shareholders representing more than one-half of
the total shares issued and the resolution has to be approved by more than two-
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thirds of the attended shareholders. The transferees of treasury stock include
employees of affiliated companies who meet certain conditions.

Article 6-2: The issuance of new shares through cash capital increase, employee stock
options, and restricted stocks shall include employees of affiliated companies who
meet certain conditions.

Article 7: The handling of the Company's stock affairs shall be governed by the Regulations
Governing the Administration of Shareholder Services of Public Companies" issued
by the competent authority.

Chapter 3 Shareholders' Meeting
Article 8: The shareholders' meeting of the company is divided into two types:

1. Regular shareholders' meeting: should be convened at least once a year.
The Board of Directors shall convene the meeting in accordance with the
relevant law within six months after the end of each fiscal year.

2. Extraordinary shareholders' meeting: should be convened when necessary
in accordance with the relevant law.

Article 9: The shareholders' meeting shall be convened by the Board of Directors, unless
otherwise requested by the Company Act.

The chairman of the board shall preside over the shareholders' meeting, and if the
chairman is absent, a director designated by the chairman shall act as the proxy. If
no one is designated, the provisions of Article 208 of the Company Act shall apply.

Article 10: Notice of the regular shareholders' meeting shall be given to each shareholder at
least 30 days in advance.
Notice of the extraordinary shareholders' meeting shall be given to each shareholder
at least 15 days in advance.

Article 11: If a shareholder is unable to attend the shareholders' meeting due to circumstances,
the shareholder may appoint a proxy by issuing a power of attorney issued by the
Company, stating the scope of the authorization, and signing or affixing the company
seal. The use of the power of attorney shall be handled in accordance with the
"Regulations Governing the Use of Proxies for Attendance at Shareholder Meetings
of Public Companies" promulgated by the competent authority, unless otherwise
provided by the Company Act.

When a person who acts as the proxy for two or more shareholders, the number of
voting power represented by him/her shall not exceed 3% of the total number of
voting shares of the company, otherwise, the portion of excessive voting power shall
not be counted.

Article 12: Each shareholder of the company has one voting right per share, excluding those
entitled to no right to vote as listed in Article 179 of the Company Act.

Article 13: Unless otherwise required by relevant laws and regulations, the resolution of the
shareholders' meeting will be adopted if the meeting is attended by shareholders in
person representing more than one half of the total issued shares of the Company
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and more than one half of the attended shareholders approved by vote. If the
number of attendees does not meet the above requirements, but more than one-third
of the shareholders representing the total number of issued shares attend the
meeting, the false resolution may still be passed with the consent of more than half of
the attended shareholders. If a false resolution is passed, the shareholders shall be
notified and a new shareholders' meeting shall be convened within one month. If
more than one-third of the shareholders representing the total number of issued
shares attend the new meeting and the resolution is passed with the consent of more
than half of the attended shareholders, the resolution shall be deemed valid.

Article 14: The matters resolved by the shareholders' meeting shall be recorded in the
meeting minutes, and the contents and distribution methods shall be handled in
accordance with Article 183 of the Company Act.

Chapter 4: Board of Directors and Audit Committee

Article 15: The Company shall have a Board of Directors consisting of five to nine members,
including at least three independent directors. The candidates for the Board of
Directors shall be nominated by the nomination system, and elected from the list of
candidates by the shareholders' meeting.

The term of office is three years and consecutive re-election is allowed.

The election method of the Board of Directors shall be formulated by the Board of
Directors and submitted to the shareholders' meeting for approval.

The Company establishes an audit department, which shall be directly commanded
by the Chairman of the Board.

Article 16: The Board of Directors shall elect a chairman of the board directors from among
the directors by a majority vote at a meeting attended by over two-thirds of the
directors. The Chairman of the Board shall execute all the affairs of the Company in
accordance with the law, the Articles of Incorporation, the resolutions of the
shareholders' meeting, and the Board of Directors. When the Chairman of the Board
is on leave or unable to perform his/her duties due to any reason, he/she shall
appoint one of the directors as the proxy. If no appointment is made, the directors
shall elect a proxy from among themselves. When one-third of the directors' seats
are vacant or all independent directors are dismissed, the Board of Directors shall
convene an extraordinary shareholders' meeting to elect new directors within 60
days.

Article 17: The Board of Directors shall hold a meeting once every quarter. In case of urgent
matters or upon request of the majority of directors, the Chairman of the Board may
convene an extraordinary meeting, and shall serve as the chairman.

The notice of the Board of Directors meeting may be delivered by email or fax.

Article 18: Unless otherwise provided by law, The Board’s resolutions should be approved by
a majority vote at a meeting attended by more than two-third of the Directors. In case
a meeting of the board of directors is proceeded via visual communication network,
then the directors taking part in such a visual communication meeting shall be
deemed to have attended the meeting in person.
According to Article 205 of the Company Act, each director shall attend board
meetings in person. If a director is unable to attend in person due to any reason, he
or she may appoint another director to attend a meeting of the board of directors in
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his/her behalf, he/she shall, in each time, issue a written proxy and state therein the
scope of authority with reference to the subjects to be discussed at the meeting. but
the proxy shall be limited to one person only.

According to Article 207 of the Company Act, the matters resolved by the board of
directors shall be recorded in minutes, which shall state the year, month, day, place,
name of the chairperson, method of resolution, summary of the proceedings, and the
results of the meeting. The minutes shall be signed or stamped by the chairperson
and shall be distributed to all directors within 20 days after the meeting.

The meeting minutes shall be kept together with the sign-in sheet of the attending
directors and the proxy issued by the directors for attendance.

Article 19: The audit committee shall be composed of all independent directors, with no fewer
than three members, one of whom shall serve as the convener, and at least one
member shall possess accounting or financial expertise. The audit committee and its
members shall be responsible for the exercise of the supervisory powers provided by
relevant laws and regulations. Matters related to the number of members, term of
office, powers, and rules of procedure of the audit committee shall be separately
specified in the organization rules of the audit committee in accordance with the
"Regulations Governing the Exercise of Powers by the Audit Committee of Public
Companies."

Article 20: The remuneration or salary of the directors for the performance of their duties must
be paid regardless of the profit or loss, and the board of directors is authorized to
provide such remuneration or salary at the usual level of the same industry. The total
amount of shares held by all directors of the Company shall comply with the
regulations set forth in the "Rules and Review Procedures for Director and
Supervisor Share Ownership Ratios at Public Companies"

Chapter 5: Managers

Article 21: The Company shall have one General Manager who, in accordance with the
resolutions of the Board of Directors, shall be responsible for the management of all
business operations of the Company. The appointment and dismissal of the General
Manager shall be in accordance with the provisions of Article 29 of the Company Law.

Chapter 6: Accounting

Article 22: At the end of each fiscal year, the Company shall prepare the following items and
submit them to the Audit Committee for review no later than 30 days before the
shareholders’ meeting and then presented to the shareholders’ meeting for approval:
1.Business report;
2.Financial statements;
3.Proposal for distribution of profits or allocation of losses.

Article 23: If the Company generates profits during the fiscal year (meaning pre-tax profits
deducted before the payment of employee and director compensation), it shall
allocate no less than 5% of the profits for employee compensation and no more than
5% for director compensation. However, if the Company has accumulated losses
(including adjustments to retained earnings), it shall reserve a compensatory amount
in advance.

Employee compensation in the preceding paragraph may be in the form of stock or
cash, and the beneficiaries may include employees of controlling or subsidiary
companies who meet certain conditions. Director compensation in the preceding
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paragraph shall only be in cash.
The first two paragraphs shall be implemented by resolution of the Board of Directors
and reported to the shareholders' meeting.

Article 23-1: If the Company has net profit after tax in the current fiscal year, it shall first offset

wpnh =

the accumulated losses (including adjustments to retained earnings) and allocate
10% of the net profit to the legal reserve in accordance with the law. However, if the
legal reserve has accumulated to the amount of the Company's paid-in capital, there
is no need to allocate further. The Company may allocate or reverse the special
reserve in accordance with laws and regulations or instructions from competent
authorities. The remaining profit, together with the undistributed earnings at the
beginning of the period (including adjustments to undistributed earnings), shall be
proposed by the Board of Directors for distribution to shareholders' meeting by
issuing new shares.

In accordance with Article 240, Paragraph 5 of the Company Act, when the Company
distributes all or part of dividends and profits in cash, the Board of Directors may be
authorized by the Articles of Incorporation to make such distributions by a resolution
passed by two-thirds or more of the directors present and a majority of the attending
directors, and report it to the shareholders' meeting. In order to maintain
shareholders' investment returns and respond to the cyclical nature of the economy
and build a sound financial structure for the Company, the distribution of dividends
shall be based on the following considerations:

Meeting the Company's future needs for expanding its operations;

Maintaining a stable level of earnings per share for the Company;

Considering the Company's cash flow and operating profit situation.

The Company is currently in a growth phase and has plans for expanding its
business operations and the need for funding in the coming years. When distributing
profits, the cash distribution of shareholder dividends shall be no less than 10%.

Article 24: Matters not covered in this Articles of Incorporation shall be handled in accordance

with the Company Act and relevant laws and regulations.

Article 25: This charter was established with the unanimous agreement of all initiators on June

18, 1985.

The first amendment was made on May 11, 1994,

The second amendment was made on August 15, 1994.
The third amendment was made on July 31, 1997.

The fourth amendment was made on October 29, 1997.
The fifth amendment was made on March 9, 1998.

The sixth amendment was made on May 20, 1999.

The seventh amendment was made on November 30, 1999.
The eighth amendment was made on May 29, 2000.

The ninth amendment was made on June 8, 2001.

The tenth amendment was made on June 14, 2002.

The eleventh amendment was made on June 13, 2003.
The twelfth amendment was made on June 11, 2004.
The thirteenth amendment was made on June 16, 2005.
The fourteenth amendment was made on June 23, 2006.
The fifteenth amendment was made on June 20, 2008.
The sixteenth amendment was made on June 8, 2010.
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The seventeenth amendment was made on June 16, 2011.
The eighteenth amendment was made on June 12, 2012.
The nineteenth amendment was made on June 11, 2014.
The twentieth amendment was made on December 29, 2014.
The twenty-first amendment was made on June 8, 2016.

The twenty-second amendment was made on June 9, 2020.
The twenty-third amendment was made on July 8, 2021.

The twenty-fourth amendment was made on June 8, 2022
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APPENDIX I

1.

DIMERCO EXPRESS CORPORATION

Rules of Shareholders' Meeting

The Shareholders' Meeting of The Company shall be conducted in accordance
with these rules.

Shareholders (or their proxies) attending the meeting shall wear their attendance
certificate. The number of shares they hold shall be calculated based on the sign-
in card submitted.

. If more than half of the total issued shares are represented by shareholders at the

meeting, the chairman shall declare the meeting open and simultaneously disclose
information such as the number of non-voting shares and the number of shares
present. If the meeting time exceeds but fails to reach the required quorum, the
chairman may announce an extension, with two extensions allowed (the first
extension being twenty minutes and the second extension being ten minutes). If
the quorum is still not met but shareholders representing more than one-third of
the issued shares are present, the chairman may proceed with the resolution
according to Article 175 of the Company Act, "with the consent of the majority of
the votes present."

When conducting the aforementioned resolution, if the shares represented by
attending shareholders have reached the required quorum, the chairman may
immediately declare the formal opening of the meeting and submit the resolution
made to the meeting for approval.

The agenda of the shareholders’ meeting shall be formulated by the Board of
Directors and distributed to attending shareholders or their proxies.

The Chairman may announce breaks during the meeting at his discretion.

When a shareholder speaks, he/she shall fill in the speaker's card with his/her
attendance card number and name, and the Chairman shall determine the order of
speeches.

When discussing agenda items, they shall be discussed in the order listed in the
agenda. If any procedure is violated or if the discussion goes beyond the scope of
the agenda, the Chairman may immediately stop the speaker.

When a shareholder speaks, the time shall not exceed five minutes. However, with
the Chairman's permission, it may be extended for three minutes. The Chairman
may stop the speaker if the time limit is exceeded.

9. Each person shall speak no more than twice on the same agenda item.
10.When discussing agenda items, the Chairman may announce the end of the

discussion at an appropriate time and may suspend the discussion if necessary.
The Chairman shall then proceed to a vote.

11.Except for special resolutions as stipulated by the Company Act, the approval of

proposals shall be based on the consent of the voting rights of more than half of
the attending shareholders. During the voting process, if the chairman has
consulted and received no objections, it shall be deemed as approved, and its
effectiveness is the same as that of the voting.

If a shareholder entrusts a proxy to attend the shareholders' meeting and one
person is entrusted by two or more shareholders at the same time, the voting rights
of the proxy shall not exceed 3% of the total voting rights of the issued shares. If
exceeded, the excess voting rights shall not be counted.

If a shareholder has a conflict of interest with the matters discussed at the meeting,
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which may harm the interests of the company, the shareholder shall not participate
in the voting and shall not act as a proxy for other shareholders to exercise their
voting rights.

12.Matters not provided for in these rules shall be handled in accordance with the
Company Act and other relevant laws and regulations.

13. These rules shall be implemented after being passed by the shareholders' meeting,
and the same applies to amendments.

14.This regulation was established with the unanimous consent of all initiators on
June 18, 1985.
First amendment made on July 8, 2021.
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APPENDIX 1lI

DIMERCO EXPRESS CORPORATION

SHAREHOLDINGS OF All DIRECTORS

Record Date: April 6, 2025

Title Name Shareholding
Chairman Wendy Chien 2,170,268
) 7,643,579
Jeffery Shih
Ruei Cheng Investment Ltd.
Representative:
Director presenta 3,706,268
George Chiou
. AGM Investment Ltd.
Director -
Representative: 8,144,038
Peng,Shi-Xiao
Independent Bill Chien 0
Director
In.dependent Ho,Chi-Ming 1,346,639
Director
Independent | chy,chia-Cheng 350,000
Director
Total 23,360,792
Note:

All directors collectively own shares that have reached the statutory percentage as
stipulated in Article 2 of the 'Regulations Governing the Shareholding Percentage of
Directors and Supervisors of Publicly Issued Companies and the Implementation of Audit.'
The minimum number of shares that all directors must hold by law is 8,573,040 shares.
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